
Associated Students Inc.

ASI Board of Directors Meeting
Tue Sep 24, 2024 1:15 PM - 3:45 PM PDT

1. Call to Order
Gavin Ong, Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:16 pm

2. Roll Call
Members Present: Alvarez, Brown, Daga, Flowers, Garibay, Her, Jain, Jarvis, Lopez,
Nebedum, Ngo, Ong, Rubio, Solares, Walkley

Members Absent: Neeki (E)

Liaisons Present: Edwards, Hannoun, J. Morales, S. Morales, Ramirez-Rivera, Syed

Liaisons Absent: None

According to the ASI Policy Concerning Board of Directors Operations, attendance is
defined as being present prior to the announcement of Unfinished Business and
remaining until the scheduled end of the meeting

* Indicates that the member was in attendance prior to the start of Unfinished Business,
but left before the scheduled ending of the meeting

** Indicates that the member was in attendance for a portion of the meeting, but not in
attendance prior to the announcement of Unfinished Business

(Brown-m / Walkley-s) The absence of member Neeki due to car issues was
excused by unanimous consent.

3. Approval of Agenda

(Brown-m / Her-s) The Agenda was adopted by unanimous consent.

4. Consent Calendar

The Consent Calendar was adopted by unanimous consent
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a. 9/10/2024 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

b. 9/17/2024 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes

5. Public Speakers
Members of the public may address Board of Directors members on any item
appearing on this posted agenda or matters impacting students

Marco Mendoza, Associate Director, Titan Hub, introduced the newly opened Titan
Hub, a one-stop center for student inquiries about financial aid, admissions,
scholarships, student services, and the registrar. The center is located in Langsdorf
Hall 114, the same space as the Registrar’s Office. Titan Hub opened on September
3rd and offers in-person, virtual, and phone appointments. Mendoza emphasized that
the Hub was developed in response to student advocacy and aims to provide efficient,
streamlined support.

Austin Ysais, Assistant Director, Student Programs & Engagement, highlighted two
events: a Music Night featuring Sabrina Carpenter and the "Beyond the Conversation"
event with Cynthia Erivo on Thursday. He encouraged Board members to participate
and to share the information with their constituents.

Kirsten Stava, Director, TSU, provided updates on the Food Pantry, introducing the
new coordinator and announcing extended hours and walk-in appointments. She also
shared plans for mobile pop-up pantries and mentioned partnerships with the College
of Engineering. Stava encouraged organizing food drives and noted the acquisition of
new grant money and upcoming improvements to pantry infrastructure, including
refrigerated lockers.

JP Gale, Director, SRC, shared updates on intramural sports, including full bookings for
basketball and upcoming tournaments in badminton and indoor soccer. JP Gale also
announced the addition of group and private swim lessons and a wellness series. He
reported a significant increase in facility usage, with 13% more student entries
compared to the same period last year.

6. Time Certain

a. 1:30pm: Jim Donovan, Director of Athletics
Jim Donovan, the Titan Athletics Director, began by expressing his gratitude for the
continuous support Titan Athletics has received over the years from ASI. He
highlighted some of the major accomplishments from the past year, such as the
men’s and women’s soccer teams winning regular season championships and the
dance team securing their 18th national championship. Donovan also mentioned an
upcoming event, Titan Nation night, which aims to engage students and alumni with
games, food trucks, and activities to boost school spirit, in collaboration with ASI.
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Haley Gough, a senior on the Titan Women’s Soccer Team, gave an update on the
team's season, explaining that they are preparing to defend their title as Big West
Conference regular season champions. Gough thanked ASI for helping to increase
attendance at games and providing much-needed financial support through
scholarships. She also shared how the women’s soccer team was able to use
additional funds to update their locker room, which had not been renovated since the
football team was disbanded in 1992.

Jason Blood, a senior on the Titan Baseball Team, also thanked ASI for their efforts
in helping to organize tailgates resulting in an increase in game attendance.  The
increase in attendance helps the players feel more like professional athletes. He
discussed how the financial support from scholarships allows the team to focus their
fundraising efforts on improving facilities, which is essential to remain competitive,
especially against more well-funded athletic programs.

Donovan concluded the presentation by emphasizing the role of ASI in supporting
over 350 student-athletes and thanked the audience for helping Titan Athletics
develop strong leaders.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

There were none.

b. 1:45 pm: Dr. Amir Dabirian, Provost /VPAA
Dr. Dabirian, Provost / VPAA, share that he checks enrollment daily.  He shared
there are 43,027 students enrolled at CSUF. This is a significant increase from the
previous high of 41,400 during 2020.  He emphasized that the proportion of full-time
students has also risen to a historic 85%, up from the previous high of 84%. He
attributed this improvement to the increased number of professional advisors, which
had doubled from last year.  The success can be partly attributed to the improved
collaboration between deans and department chairs.  Additionally more classes
were made available, and incoming freshmen received assistance with class
selection during orientation.

Dr. Dabirian recounted the University’s five strategic goals: student success, student
well-being, a diverse faculty and staff, financial resources, and innovation.

Dr. Dabirian spoke about ongoing space upgrades, including the relocation of the
Graduate Student Center and health profession advising is now on the first floor of
the library.  He also mentioned efforts to provide free testing materials, encouraging
faculty to use electronic options when possible.
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Dr. Dabirian introduced the "Dream to Degrees" program, a concept named by ASI
to help students move towards graduation. Last year, over 1,000 students
participated in the program, and participants gave positive feedback.

Finally, he noted the university U-Achieve Planner implementation allows
undergraduate students to map their academic journey.  The pilot program will be
offered to the college of ECS and CBE this week.  The campuswide rollout is
targeted for Spring 2025.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

Syed brought up concerns about over-enrollment and asked how student leaders
should address the rise in enrollment and the need for expanded campus
resources. Dr. Dabirian explained that the university is increasing support services,
such as advising and tutoring, alongside enrollment growth. He ensured that more
classes are being offered to accommodate students and noted that 20-25% of
classes are now online, helping with issues like parking. The goal is to match
student growth with sufficient support.

Rubio asked if students declaring minors could still graduate within four years. Dr.
Dabirian clarified that it depends on double-counting requirements. If there is
overlap, students can finish in four years, but if not, it may take four to five years.

Brown thanked Dr. Dabirian for his work on the Black Student Success Initiative. Dr.
Dabirian credited Brown’s contributions and shared that 1,499 students now identify
as Black on campus.

Daga inquired about offering Coursera to the College of ECS. Dr. Dabirian
mentioned past discussions with Coursera and plans to re-engage to explore
integrating their courses.

Ong expressed appreciation for Dr. Dabirian's efforts.  Dr. Dabirian encouraged
student leaders to reach out and collaborate with him, emphasizing their importance
in improving the university.

c. 2:15 pm: Anthony Frisbee, Chief, UPD
Anthony Frisbee, Chief, UPD, shared insights from his 30 years of experience in
policing, emphasizing the importance of enhancing campus safety at CSUF. He
presented a holistic safety approach that integrates various professionals for
effective incident management, aiming to create a safe and inclusive environment
for all students.
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Frisbee outlined operational changes, including the introduction of unarmed campus
safety specialists to handle non-emergency calls, which allows police officers to
concentrate on more serious incidents. He also mentioned the establishment of a
mobile crisis team to support students in distress, highlighting the university's
proactive stance in addressing mental health needs.

While most incidents reported are property crimes, Frisbee pointed out an increase
in service calls, indicating a need for community engagement to mitigate crime
opportunities. He stressed the importance of ongoing training for officers, focusing
on de-escalation and diversity, as well as fostering community relationships to build
trust.

Additionally, Frisbee announced a new one-year certificate program designed to
educate students on public safety topics, preparing them for future careers in law
enforcement. He concluded by underlining the significance of collaboration and
utilizing various resources beyond the police department to ensure a safe campus.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

Ramirez-Rivera raised concern regarding student safety, particularly about the lack
of awareness among students on the availability of escort services to their vehicles.
Ramirez-Rivera suggested that ASI could play a role in promoting this service, as it
is not typically covered in orientation. Chief Frisbee acknowledged this gap in
communication and agreed to collaborate with ASI to develop flyers and other
materials that would inform students about the escort service and other safety
resources available on campus.

Rubio followed up with a question about what students should do if they are in crisis.
Chief Frisbee reassured that students could call any relevant number, including 911
or the UPD non-emergency line, as dispatchers are now trained to assess the
situation and determine the appropriate response. For non-violent crises, they would
connect the caller with a mobile crisis response team.

Hannoun suggested that the department should coordinate with housing to address
safety concerns, particularly for female students walking from parking areas to their
dorms. Frisbee appreciated this suggestion and committed to distributing information
about safety resources through housing and during student move-in periods.

Jarvis raised a question regarding the 988 suicide hotline, noting the difference in
how calls are routed compared to 911. Chief Frisbee clarified that calls to 988 are
handled by the county, which is familiar with the resources available on campus.
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Depending on the situation, the county may provide immediate counseling or
coordinate with campus services for additional support.

Ong inquired about the status of the internship program that had been discussed in
the past. Chief Frisbee confirmed that the internship program is being revived,
starting with an Emergency Management internship that has already begun, and
there are plans to expand opportunities for criminology students to gain hands-on
experience working alongside university police officers and other staff.

d. 2:30 pm: Andy Maffia, Managing Partner, Aldrich Advisors LLC
This item will coincide with New Business Item 9.a

Andy Maffia, Managing Partner, Aldrich Advisors LLC, who joined the meeting
virtually, presented the audit review and report.

Aldrich Advisors LLC is the firm responsible for ASI's annual financial statement
audit. Maffia clarified the purpose of the audit, noting that it is a requirement for
nonprofit organizations in California, particularly those affiliated with the CSU
system. He explained that the audit is a standard procedure that helps ensure
compliance and transparency, and reassured attendees that being audited does not
imply wrongdoing.

The audit's primary goal is to provide an opinion on the accuracy of the financial
statements. Maffia reported that the firm issued an unmodified opinion, meaning
there were no significant issues or necessary modifications to the audit report. He
congratulated the board and management for achieving this positive outcome, which
reflects the best possible result from any CPA firm.

Maffia highlighted that the audit covered the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, and
discussed the evaluation of internal controls. He reported that there were no issues
identified in this area, which indicates a strong control environment that helps
prevent errors and fraud.

He further explained that the audit was designed as a risk-based audit, meaning that
it focused on significant areas rather than reviewing every single transaction. This
approach allows for a more efficient audit process while still providing a thorough
assessment.

Maffia concluded by praising the management team for their cooperation throughout
the audit process.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.
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There were none.

7. Executive Senate Reports

a. None

8. Unfinished Business
None

9. New Business

a. Action: Resolution to Accept the 2024 Audited Financial Statements (Audit)
The Board will consider approving the resolution to accept the 2024 Audited
Financial Statements

BOD 022 24/25 (Audit) A motion to accept the 2024 Audited Financial
Statements has been brought to the Board from the Audit Committee

Ong, Chair, yielded the floor to Brown, Audit Committee Chair, for a review of the
resolution and a discussion from the committee.

Brown expressed gratitude for the successful audit report presented by Maffia, and
thanked everyone involved. Brown highlighted the necessity for board members to
be engaged in the audit process to ensure that ASI serves students in a beneficial
and justifiable manner. He also thanked the Audit Committee members for their
commitment to attending Committee meetings and concluded by suggesting that the
Board should unanimously vote in favor of accepting the audit.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

Dr. Edwards emphasized a few key takeaways for those less familiar with the audit
process. He highlighted that the Audit Committee, which includes Board members,
campus partners, and professional staff, had thoroughly reviewed the audit and
recommended its approval. Dr. Edwards referenced Maffia’s earlier comments,
noting the significance of having had a clean audit, which indicates that there are no
concerns regarding financial controls and that the financial statements prepared by
the ASI's Accounting and Finance staff are accurate and well-done. He reassured
the Board that ASI is in good financial shape and commended the Finance and
Accounting team for their exceptional work in preparing for the audit and managing
student fees throughout the past year.

BOD 022 24/25 (Audit) Roll Call Vote: 17-0-0 The motion to accept the 2024
Audited Financial Statements was adopted.
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b. Action: Resolution to Approve a Student Recreation Center External Review
(Programs Assessment)
The Board will consider approving a resolution to conduct an external program
review of the Student Recreation Center.  The review will include the facility and its
programs, services, and practices.

BOD 023 24/25 (Programs Assessment) A motion to approve a resolution to
conduct a Student Recreation Center External Review has been brought to the
Board from the Programs Assessment Committee

Ong, Chair, yielded the floor to JP Gale, Director, SRC, to present the details of the
initiative.

JP Gale explained that the external program review is an impartial evaluation of the
SRC's quality and effectiveness by outside experts. He noted the importance of this
review for assessing the program, validating its direction, and ensuring alignment
with industry standards, as rec centers typically undergo such evaluations every five
to ten years.

Gale mentioned that, unlike other institutions, Cal State Fullerton has not previously
conducted an external program review for its SRC. He introduced the three external
experts who have tentatively committed to the review, each bringing extensive
experience in campus recreation.

The review will focus on standards set by the Council for the Advancement of
Standards in Higher Education (CAS), evaluating aspects like programs, leadership,
assessment, and facilities. The review team is scheduled to visit the campus from
November 13 to 15 if approved, meeting with various stakeholders, including
student staff and Board members.

Gale requested $17,000 to cover the external review team’s compensation, travel,
lodging, and food, which would be funded from the SRC operating budget.

The goal of the review is to produce a detailed report with actionable
recommendations for the SRC, which Gale plans to present to the board in the
spring, ultimately aiming to develop a three to five-year strategic plan for the SRC.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

Daga asked about the key insights from Gale's previous experience with external
reviews. Gale responded that insights from the reviews at Cal State Northridge
included minor improvements related to messaging and marketing, as well as
ensuring equitable programming for both men and women. He noted that while no
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major issues were identified, the feedback provided valuable guidance for making
adjustments and enhancing the program.

Ong, Chair, yielded the floor to Alvarez, Programs Assessment Committee Chair, to
review the resolution.

Alvarez emphasized that the SRC has been operational for 16 years without an
external review, making this process significant. He clarified that the $17,000
funding for the external review team would come from the SRC operating budget,
covering their travel, accommodations, and meals during their visit from November
13th to 15th. Alvarez highlighted several benefits of the review, including the
development of a three to five-year plan for the SRC, providing a roadmap for
improvement and facilitating feedback from students and staff.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

Brown raised concerns about the intentionality behind collecting board member
opinions this year, noting the significance of the review in the consequent periods.
He questioned the feedback process, given that not all current members may be
reelected, and emphasized the importance of a long-term vision for ASI. While
acknowledging the value of external reviewers, Brown sought clarity on goals
beyond the three to five-year SRC improvement plan.

Dr. Edwards explained that an external review is a common practice in higher
education to assess programs and inform long-term planning. He emphasized that
this review aims to engage experts who will gather data on all the SRC programs,
differentiating it from previous assessments focused solely on wellness. Although
the current Board may not be able to see the plan's development due to term limits,
the findings will result in a comprehensive report. This report will guide
recommendations for the next Board, allowing for both immediate actions and long-
term strategies, similar to the campus's strategic planning process.

J. Morales echoed concerns about the importance of intentionality when managing
student funds, particularly with amounts exceeding $15,000. He stressed the need
for a clear plan that provides future student leaders with a blueprint of current
priorities and advocacy efforts.

Alvarez clarified that the $17,000 is specifically for bringing the external review team
to the Student Recreation Center (SRC) and is not funding the subsequent three to
five-year plan. He highlighted the need for this review to identify areas for
improvement, noting that the SRC has not had an external review before.
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Ramirez-Rivera added that the SRC budget is adjusting to accommodate this
expenditure, ensuring that the review will directly benefit students by addressing
facility needs.

Neeki emphasized the importance of aligning resource improvements with increased
student enrollment and the necessity of leaving a strong foundation for future
boards.

Walkley confirmed that the SRC budget funds this review and noted the current high
usage of SRC facilities as an opportune time for assessment.

Ong reiterated the significance of the review in enhancing the SRC's reputation and
functionality. 

J. Morales voiced strong support for the review, citing the long gap since the last
one and encouraging Board members to advocate for necessary improvements to
maximize the SRC's potential.

BOD 023 24/25 (Programs Assessment) Roll Call Vote: 17-0-0 The motion to
approve a resolution to conduct a Student Recreation Center External Review
was adopted.

10. Reports

a. COLLEGE REPORTS:

i. None

b. EXECUTIVE REPORTS:

i. Executive Officers Report
J. Morales, President, emphasized the importance of reaching out to him, Ong,
and S. Morales with any questions regarding campus issues. He mentioned
attending a meeting with the CSSA president and urged members to sign up for
tabling to assist Hannoun.

Ramirez-Rivera, Chief Inclusion and Diversity Officer, reported that she is still
looking for one more Commissioner interested in social justice work. She is
planning a family-based petition clinic after the elections, focusing on immigration
policy. She also requested that members distribute scholarship flyers to increase
awareness among students and mentioned her efforts to review scholarship
criteria to eliminate barriers.
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Hannoun, Chief Governmental Officer, highlighted her collaboration with the civil
engagement working group. She discussed the Time, Place, and Manner policy,
noting that while many agree it's necessary, it may infringe on free speech. She
expressed a need for more volunteers to support upcoming events and promoted
the Titans Turnout event on October 21st in the quad, which will feature Dr.
Rochon, CSUF President.

ii. Academic Senate Representative (Dr. Matt Jarvis)
Dr. Matt Jarvis provided a report for the Academic Senate, outlining its
responsibilities, primarily focused on curriculum, academic standards, and the
Retention, Tenure, and Promotion (RTP) process.

The Senate formulates policies through University Policy Statements (UPS),
particularly in the 300 and 400 series, which include grade and withdrawal
policies, as well as curriculum regulations. While these policies may not directly
affect students, they shape the academic programs and classes students engage
with.

Jarvis highlighted the Senate's structure, which includes ex officio members like
the university president and provost, as well as elected faculty and student
representatives. He noted the challenges of managing numerous committees, as
there are 25 standing committees with a large number of faculty required to serve,
leading to a reliance on the same individuals.

Looking ahead, Jarvis mentioned upcoming reviews of policies, including the
lecture review process and administrative search procedures, with an aim to
create more inclusive processes. Significant changes are also on the horizon
regarding General Education (GE) requirements, which will simplify transfer
pathways between institutions, potentially impacting future students. The Senate
is also seeking to streamline its committee structure to reduce faculty service
demands.

Ong, Chair, opened the floor to questions and points of discussion.

There were none.

c. BOARD LEADERSHIP REPORTS:

i. Secretary Report
Alvarez discussed recent activities over the past two weeks, particularly the
meetings related to the Programs Assessment Committee, which approved items
presented to the Board. Alvarez recaped the External Review team's visit to the
SRC scheduled from November 13-15. Additionally, Alvarez mentioned attending
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Convocation at the Performing Arts Center and highlighted ongoing discussions
regarding facility hour changes for the SRC, TSU, and the Children's Center for
the upcoming Facilities Committee meeting.

ii. Treasurer Report
Ngo reported on attending several meetings, including chairing the Executive
Senate meeting, which went well. In the last Finance Committee meeting,
discussions focused on long-term obligations and capital budgets. The committee
will review two policies this semester: asset management and fundraising, with a
meeting planned to discuss asset management.

iii. Vice Chair Report
Rubio provided a brief update, emphasizing well-wishes for everyone as they
approach midterms. He encouraged participation and discussions on policy
reviews and resolutions during Governance Committee meetings.

iv. Chair Report
Ong addressed Board members about scheduling future meetings and requested
monthly reports from all members regarding various meetings, encouraging quick
bullet-point summaries. Ong is working with all the committees to address policy
concerns and improve access to college resources. He is collaborating with ASI
programming for International Education Week and the Multicultural Fest, aiming
to unify efforts for greater impact in promoting international education.

11. Announcements/Member's Privilege
Hannoun emphasized the importance of engaging with the new TMP (Time Place and
Manner) policy, urging members to consider the system-wide impact on 500,000
California State University students. She encouraged thorough reading and
discussion of the policy, highlighting concerns about potential overreach and
implications for students' rights, particularly freedom of speech.

S. Morales reminded members that the scholarship application deadline is October
14th. She urged everyone to spread the word to classmates and clubs.

Ramirez-Rivera invited members to support upcoming events, including movie night
at McCarthy Hall and various events organized by the LatinX community.

Rubio announced a salsa-making competition organized by housing, inviting
everyone to participate and enjoy free food.

Ong commended board members for their proactive involvement in tabling events,
noting it is the first year all members participated in at least one event. Ong also
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highlighted the birthday month of Keya Allen, Associate Executive Director,
encouraging members to celebrate.

12. Adjournment
Gavin Ong, ASI Board of Directors Chair, adjourned the meeting at 3:39 pm

________________________________________________
Noah Alvarez, Board Secretary

________________________________________________
Erika Perret-Martinez, Recording Secretary
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Roll Call Votes Roll Call Votes

Yes No ABSTAIN Yes No ABSTAIN

ARTS HER BENJAMIN 1 ARTS HER BENJAMIN 1

ARTS LOPEZ JOSHUA 1 ARTS LOPEZ JOSHUA 1

CBE CBE

CBE NGO SAMANTHA 1 CBE NGO SAMANTHA 1

COMM GARIBAY JOEL 1 COMM GARIBAY JOEL 1

ECS DAGA KESHAV 1 ECS DAGA KESHAV 1

ECS JAIN KAVIL 1 ECS JAIN KAVIL 1

EDU OLIVARES RENATA 1 EDU OLIVARES RENATA 1

EDU WALKLEY BRIAN 1 EDU WALKLEY BRIAN 1

HHD BROWN JARED 1 HHD BROWN JARED 1

HHD SOLARES ANDREA 1 HHD SOLARES ANDREA 1

HSS ALVAREZ NOAH 1 HSS ALVAREZ NOAH 1

HSS NEBEDUM SOMI 1 HSS NEBEDUM SOMI 1

NSM NEEKI ARIANNA 1 NSM NEEKI ARIANNA 1

NSM RUBIO BRIAN 1 NSM RUBIO BRIAN 1

Academic Senate Rep. JARVIS MATT 1 Academic Senate Rep. JARVIS MATT 1

Univ. President's Rep. FLOWERS ALISA 1 Univ. President's Rep. FLOWERS ALISA 1

CHAIR (COMM) ONG GAVIN 1 CHAIR (COMM) ONG GAVIN 1

YES NO ABSTAIN YES NO ABSTAIN

17 0 0 17 0 0

22 Action: Resolution to Accept 

the 2024 Audited Financial 

Statements (Audit)

23 Action: Resolution to Approve a 

Student Recreation Center 

External Review (Programs 

Assessment)
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ASI BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ATHLETICS PRESENTATION

FALL 2024



Jim Donovan 
Director of Athletics 



• Men’s and Women’s 
Regular Season 
Champions 

• Softball Big West 
Champions and Post 
Season Appearance 

• Men’s Water polo 
Inaugural Season

• Men’s & Women’s Golf 
individual Champions

•  Dance achieves their 18th 
National Championship 

• 3 Titans drafted to the 
MLB – Christian 
Rodriguez, Andrew 
Morones, and Evan Yates2 0 2 3 - 2 0 24 ANNUA L R E P O R T





Haley Gough 
Women’s Soccer  



Jason Blood  
Baseball  



Dr. Amir Dabirian

Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs

ASI 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS UPDATE

9/24/2024



Looking at the Numbers

• Headcount and FTES have reached historic highs, with current figures at 43,027 and 
36,217, respectively. This represents a notable increase from Fall 2023, which saw 
headcounts and FTES at 41,326 and 34,385, and from Fall 2022, where the figures 
were 39,729 and 32,496

• Resident headcount and FTES also reflect this growth, currently at 41,924 and 
35,364, compared to 40,027 and 33,387 last year and 38,433 and 31,478 the year 
before. Among our first-time freshmen and lower division students, the full-time to 
part-time ratio has improved to 92%, up from 89% in 2022 and 91% in 2023, 
equating to an average of 13.8 units

• University-wide, our headcount to full-time ratio is 85%, with an average of 12.75 
units, surpassing the 84% rate recorded during the COVID-19-impacted Fall of 2020. 
We have significantly expanded our advising capacity, doubling the number of 
advisors from last year

• Tenure and promotion figures show 38 promotions, with 30 advancing to full 
professor and 36 part-time faculty achieving range elevation. We have also awarded 
a record 58 sabbaticals this year, including ten-year-long sabbaticals, marking the 
highest number of sabbaticals in our history

• We extended 40 faculty offers and successfully hired 35 new tenure-track faculty 
members to join us this fall

Cal State Fullerton 



Strategic Plan 2024 - 29

Goal 1
Enhance Support for 

Student Access, 
Learning, and 

Academic Success

1
Goal 2

Foster Student 
Engagement and Well 

Being

2
Goal 3

Recruit, Develop, and 
Retain High Quality and 

Diverse 

3
Goal 4

Expand and Strengthen 
Physical and Financial 

Capacity and 
Community Relations

4
Goal 5

Innovate and Improve 
Campus Operations 

5

Cal State Fullerton 



Space Upgrades

The Graduate Student Center has been 
successfully relocated to PLN-121, 
providing our graduate students with a 
new and improved environment. 

The Health Professions Advising Office 
has moved to the Library North, 
enhancing accessibility and integration 
with other academic resources. 

The Office of Extension moved to the 
9th floor of College Park in May 2024. 

The Office of Academic Programs, 
including Graduate Studies, transitioned 
to MH-111 during the summer of 2024, 
positioning it more centrally within our 
academic facilities. 
We renovated several key areas, 
including the Success Centers, 
Business Advising, and the SGMH 
Lobby. These updates aim to create 
more vibrant and functional spaces to 
support our students and faculty better

Cal State Fullerton 



Project Blue Book

• Free testing materials will 
once again be available to 
our students, further 
supporting their academic 
success.

CSUF I ....... ., Academic Affairs 

YOUR PROftSSOR 
WILL NOW BE PROVIDIN6 lHEH TO YOU 

AT NO EXTRA OOSTI 

KUIIONlalCAIITaDIII 

Blue Book 

Cal State Fullerton 



Dreams to Degrees
Event Overview: A two-day event to raise awareness 

about spring registration and remove barriers to 
timely graduation. 

Dreams to Degrees Site

Mission:
• Provide a one-stop shop for all registration and 

student support needs
• Raise awareness of the registration process
• Remove barriers for students
• Foster a strong sense of belonging

Event Highlights:
• Students can get assistance with registration, 

financial aid, and campus support programs
• Advisors from all colleges and various campus 

departments are available to help

Departments Present: Title IX, Financial Aid, Registrar's 
Office, Pollak Library, Major Exploration Program, 
Veterans Resource Center, and more.

October 16-17

Cal State Fullerton 

https://www.fullerton.edu/dreams-to-degrees/#:~:text=Dreams%20to%20Degrees%20at%20Cal,to%20registration%2C%20and%20timely%20graduation


uAchieve Planner

Mission
• Allow undergraduate students to map their entire academic journey
• Integrates with Titan Degree Audit (TDA) so students can track their 

progress toward graduation

• The pilot was rolled out in June 2024 (ECS and CBE)

• The scheduler will be rolled out this week. It automates your course schedule 
selection based on your date and time preference

Target Spring 2025 campuswide rollout

--... 
--

Cal State Fullerton 



Flexible Transfer 
"Once a Titan, Always a Titan"

Cal State Fullerton 

Flexible Pathways to Degree 
Roadmap 

Do you have questions about your academic path? Need guidance on what steps to take next? We're here to help! 
Our advisors are ava ilable to discuss your individual needs and help you create a personalized roadmap to graduation. 

1 
Cal State Fullerton 

2 
Partnership 

Community College 

3 
Other Community 

Colleges 



Supplemental Instruction 

& University Learning 

Center 

Provides academic support, innovative strategies, and 
resources to promote student success, retention, and 
graduation. 

Supplemental Instruction (SI):

• Peer-led group study sessions for challenging courses 
with high D, F, or W rates

• Led by SI leaders who help students improve 
understanding, develop study strategies, and prepare for 
exams

• Supports over 150 course sections across 13 
departments and five colleges in Fall 2024

 University Learning Center (ULC):

• Offers individual and group tutoring in over 40 general 
education and major courses

• In-person, virtual, and walk-in appointments are 
available

Cal State Fullerton 



International Education 
& Engagement (IEE) 
Programs

Study Abroad & Global Engagement 
(SAGE): Offers semester and yearlong 
study abroad programs. Collaborates with 
faculty to create programs aligned with 
academic goals.

International Student Services (ISS): 
Provides immigration advising and holistic 
support for international students and 
visiting scholars, fostering inclusion from 
admission to postgraduation.

International Recruitment & Outreach 
(IRO): Focuses on recruiting international 
students and building relationships with 
global partners to diversify campus life.

Global Partnerships: Establishes and 
maintains international collaborations, 
promoting student and faculty exchanges, 
joint research, and cross-border programs.

Key Events

International Education Week (IEW): Celebrates global 
diversity through student performances, workshops, and cultural 
events. Tuesday, October 15 through Saturday, October 19

Study Abroad Fair: Inspires students to explore study abroad 
options, featuring faculty, returnees, and advisors.

End of Semester Celebration: Honors the achievements of 
international students and study abroad participants with 
performances and contests.

International Student Speakers Series: Launched in fall 2024, 
features discussions on global topics with students, faculty, and 
community members.

.. 

r 

, 
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Arboretum and Botanical Garden at Cal State Fullerton

▪ After nearly 45 years since the arboretum officially opened 
at the north end of Cal State Fullerton’s campus, the 26-
acre botanical garden has a new name

▪ The CSUF-owned arboretum was renamed the Arboretum 
and Botanical Garden at Cal State Fullerton to reflect the 
university’s educational, research, and environmental 
mission

▪ The botanical garden’s key role is teaching and learning 
while broadening its reach throughout Southern California, 
the nation, and the world

▪ Heritage House Stewardship team is the newest team, and 
they will work with faculty in the Anthropology department 
to learn about museum collections care, medicinal plants, 
and tour development

▪ Internship opportunities are open to all majors and class 
levels and are offered in Fall, Spring, and Summer

Cal State Fullerton 



Undergrad Research Opportunity Center 

Programs:

▪ UROC Student Travel Grant: Funds travel for students 
attending conferences or career development events. 

▪ Workshops: Develop students' critical thinking and 
communication skills and preparation for conferences and 
funding opportunities.

▪ Mentor-Mentee Meetup: Facilitates relationships between 
students and faculty, targeting underrepresented 
departments to increase diversity.

▪ NCUR: Provides travel grants for 35 to 40 students 
attending the National Conference on Undergraduate 
Research.

▪ UROC Fellowship: Offers funding for students conducting 
research under faculty mentors, requiring 300 per semester 
and 600 hours per academic year of commitment and 
participation in a symposium.

And many more programs to empower students to develop 
professionally through research and creative activities.

Cal State Fullerton 

CSUE I Undergra~uate Research 
. Opportunity Center 



Black Titan Success Website - 

Enhance access to academic and support services

Foster a strong sense of community and belonging for Black 
students.

Black Titan Success Resources

▪ A dedicated one-stop website offering tailored information, 
support services, and academic resources for Black 
students, faculty, staff, and families

Black Chat Series

▪ A program hosted in the African American Resource Center 
(AARC) connects students with campus partners and 
resources.

▪ Highlight: Mixer with the Provost on October 3rd

Click Here

Cal State Fullerton 

https://www.fullerton.edu/BlackSuccess/?fbclid=PAZXh0bgNhZW0CMTEAAaamGHKQ_9dF5U6AALBqcKwv9RPlHR5AKltSDyFAaP01CMhO-LE8LFn92IE_aem_I1ixrWzl0v8xmJtvhRtNbA
https://www.fullerton.edu/BlackSuccess/?fbclid=PAZXh0bgNhZW0CMTEAAaamGHKQ_9dF5U6AALBqcKwv9RPlHR5AKltSDyFAaP01CMhO-LE8LFn92IE_aem_I1ixrWzl0v8xmJtvhRtNbA


Student Academic Support 

Dedicated to student success through advising, academic 
support, and retention initiatives 

Undeclared Advising Program: Connecting undeclared students 
with advisors for guidance on majors, scheduling, and campus 
involvement.
Non-Enrollment Campaigns: Reduced Fall 2024 non-enrolled 
students from 8,396 to 3,631 through targeted outreach.
Graduation Advising: Streamlined graduation checks, offered 
grants, and advised on timely degree completion.
Health Profession Advising Office (HPAO): HPAO is 
developing a CANVAS module to improve students’ easy access 
to knowledge of health professions pathways. 
Caps on Heads Graduation Initiative: with Summer Grants and 
Finish Strong courses 



Student Genius Center / IT Help Desk

Student Genius Center

▪  Assistance with connecting to campus WiFi (Eduroam)

▪  Short-term loans for laptops, iPads, and portable chargers

▪   Campus software installations

Location: Pollak Library North, first floor

IT Help Desk 24/7

Provides technical support for campus-related technologies, 
including:

▪ Titan Online, Campus Portal, Titanium, Campus Email, 
and Wireless Connection

▪  Assistance via walk-ins, phone, email, and live chat

Location: Student Genius Corner

Cal State Fullerton 



Center for Equitable 

Digital Access 
Bridge the digital divide by providing 
students equitable access to technology 
and digital literacy training. 

Services: Offers devices via the TitanWare 
program, access to Pollak Library’s tech 
resources (Data Visualization Center, the 
Innovation Center)

The Innovation Center offers students 
cutting-edge technology, including a 
Bambu Lab 3D printer, 3D Eniscan 
Scanner, Sony Spatial Reality Display, and 
ViewSonic Interactive Board. 

Coming soon: Trinocular Compound 
Microscope, Meta Quest 3, Jetson Nano 
Robots, and Raspberry Pi.
Partner with TitanCard for Professional 
Headshots throughout the semester

___,;,,__ -------==--...: 
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Questions & Answers?
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ASI Board of Directors

September 24, 2024

Holistic Safety
Titans Thriving Together

Cal State Fullerton 



Anthony Frisbee 
(he, him, his)

Chief of Police
Cal State Fullerton

 30 + years of public service

 18 years at UC Irvine, UCI Health, and UC 
Riverside

 Bachelor Degree in Organizational Leadership

 Master Degree in Criminology, Law & Society

2I 



Our Commitment to You

We are pursuing a holistic safety vision 
to evolve university policing to new 

heights of excellence within the CSU 
and beyond by implementing a tiered 
safety response system to support a 

safe, inclusive, and welcoming 
university for Titans to thrive.



Tiered Safety Response System 

Cal State Fullerton 



Holistic SafetyWorkplace 

Violence 

Prevention 

Title IX and 

Gender Equity

Confidential 

Advocacy Services Student Affairs

Human Resources, 

Diversity & Inclusion

Parking

Basic Needs

Disability Support 

Services

CAPS

& 

Crisis Response 

Team CSUF PD



2023 Operational Trends
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Department Training & Exercises

Cal State Fullerton 



Community Engagement
Enhancing Safety By Building Trust Through Authenticity

Updated Department Website
https://police.fullerton.edu/

Cal State Fullerton 

https://police.fullerton.edu/


Collaboration 
with         

Criminal Justice 
Faculty 

&             
Criminal Justice 

Student 
Association

Cal State Fullerton 



Community Police Academy

Cal State Fullerton 



Join Our Team:  Hiring Student CSOs 

♦ Student Community Service Officer – Patrol
♦ Student Community Service Officer – Records Bureau

♦ Student Community Service Officer – Emergency Preparedness Program 

View our job availabilities below or 

set up a search alert with Jobs@CSUF



Questions & Answers?

?



afrisbee@Fullerton.edu

Anthony Frisbee (he,him,his)

Chief of Police
CSUF Police Department

Division of Administration & Finance

Titans Thriving Together



  
 
 

Resolution to Accept 2024 ASI Audited Financial Statements 
Sponsored by: Jared Brown 

 
WHEREAS, the Associated Students Inc. (ASI) is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that 
operates as an auxiliary organization of California State University, Fullerton; and  
 
WHEREAS, ASI is governed by ASI Board of Directors, who set policy for the organization, 
approve all funding allocations to programs and services, and advocate on behalf of student 
interests on committees and boards; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CSU requires each auxiliary organization shall have an annual financial audit 
performed by a certified public accountant selected by the governing board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the audited financial statements and management report must be reviewed by the 
organization’s Board of Directors before submitting to the campus and Chancellor’s office; and 
 
WHEREAS, ASI’s audited financial statements and report is prepared by the organization’s 
independent auditing firm and reviewed by the ASI Executive Director, CFO, and the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors; therefore let it be 
 
RESOLVED, the ASI Board of Directors accepts the 2024 ASI, CSUF audited financial 
statements and report; and 
 
RESOLVED, the completed audit shall be furnished to the CSU accounting office in the office of 
the Chancellor; and let it be finally   
 
RESOLVED, that this resolution be distributed to the ASI Executive Director, ASI Associate 
Executive Director, ASI CFO, and applicable ASI departments for appropriate action.   
 
 
Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Associated Students Inc., California State University, 
Fullerton on the twenty-fourth day of September in the year two thousand and twenty-four.   
 
 
 
Gavin Ong 
Chair, Board of Directors 

 Noah Alvarez 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
 

1 

To assist you in your responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors, this section summarizes the most 
significant conclusions reached and issues addressed during our audit of Associated Students, Inc., California 
State University, Fullerton for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
 

SIGNIFICANT CONCLUSIONS AND ISSUES 
 
We have completed our audit and issued our report, dated REPORT DATE - TBD. Based on our work performed: 

 

 Our audit scope was in accordance with that communicated in our engagement letter dated April 20, 

2023. 

 We rendered an unmodified opinion on the June 30, 2024 financial statements.  

 Audit areas designated as greater than normal risk have been addressed and resolved to our satisfaction, 

in the context of the overall fairness of the presentation of the financial statements.  

 We received the full cooperation of management and staff throughout the audit and were kept informed 

as to developments and plans affecting our audit scope. 

 
The following report includes required communications and additional information for the benefit of the Board of 
Directors. 
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Aldrich CPAs + Advisors LLP 
7676 Hazard Center Drive, Suite 550 
San Diego, CA 92108 

 
 
 

 

REPORT DATE - TBD 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton (ASI), 
for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE - TBD. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted 
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter dated April 20, 
2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 
audit: 
 
Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by ASI are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 

Management’s estimate of the collectability of outstanding receivables based on their assessment of the credit 
worthiness of the customer or entity. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
allowance in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the useful lives of furniture and equipment is based on management’s estimate of 
the life of the assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful life in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s determination of the assets that should be capitalized in the records of ASI versus those that 
should be transferred to the California State University, Fullerton (University) and capitalized by the University. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to determine which assets should be capitalized in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the allocation of functional expenses, which is based on square footage, time and 
effort, and usage. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates related to the 
allocation of functional expenses in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the pension and other post-employment benefits liability is based on the results of 
the actuarially determined liability. We evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates 
related to the pension and other post-employment benefits liability in determining that it is reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the value of in-kind contribution of space from the University for the usage of 
buildings at no cost. We evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate related to the in-
kind calculation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. There are two sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements: 
 

Note 3 which discloses ASI’s cash management and available resources. 
 
Notes 6 and 7 related to the pension plan and other post-employment benefit liability is sensitive as it is 
significant to the overall financial statements. This liability records a future liability for the pension and other 
post-employment benefits of ASI. 
 
Note 8 which discloses the net assets and associated restrictions.  

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those 
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The attached schedule 
summarizes corrected and uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated REPORT DATE - TBD. A copy of the letter is included for your reference. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the ASI’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us 
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as ASI’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred 
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 

With respect to the supplemental information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplemental information to the underlying accounting 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Associated Students, 
Inc., California State University, Fullerton and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Summary of Adjustments 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

4 

1-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 2,281,755.00
1-6960 Pension Exp- CALPERS:Service Costs 394,265.00
3-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 2,455,240.00
3-2620 Unfunded VEBA Medical Liability 807,380.00

3-6960 Pension Exp- CALPERS:Service Costs 394,265.00
1-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 394,265.00

1-2610 Pension Obligation 2,281,755.00
3-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 394,265.00
3-2610 Pension Obligation 3,262,620.00

Total 6,332,905.00 6,332,905.00

Adjusting Journal Entries

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1

PBC To reclass unfunded liabilities

 

3-6300 Live Scan 2,998.00
3-3000 Unrestricted Fund Balance 2,998.00

Total 2,998.00 2,998.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2

To adjust beginning net assets to actual

 

3-6360 Miscellaneous Expense 14,425.00
3-7200 ALD Amortization Expense 58,550.00

3-7100 Depreciation Expense 14,425.00
3-7100 Depreciation Expense 58,550.00

Total 72,975.00 72,975.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3

To record gain on sale of asset and true up current year depreciation 

 

1-8999 ALD In Kind rent 925,100.00
3-8999 ALD In Kind Rent 7,503,425.00
1-6999 ALD In Kind contribution of space 925,100.00
3-6999 ALD In Kind contribution of space 7,503,425.00

Total 8,428,525.00 8,428,525.00

To record In-Kind Rent amounts that occured during FY24.
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Summary of Adjustments 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
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1-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 106,000.00
1-6961 ALD Pension Expenses - OPEB | Service Costs 89,476.00

3-2600 Unfunded Pension Liability 124,434.00
3-6961 ALD Pension Expenses - OPEB | Service Costs 105,036.00
1-9988 ALD Pension Expenses - OPEB | Non-Service Costs 195,476.00
3-9988 ALD Pension Expenses - OPEB | Non-Service Costs 229,470.00

Total 424,946.00 424,946.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5

To adjust OPEB Liability to accrual per actuarial valuations

 

1-3000 Unrestricted Fund Balance 527.00
1-3208 ASI Titan Recreation Donation 527.00

Total 527.00 527.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6

To record balance for ASI Titan Recreaction Accouunt

 

1-6960 Pension Exp- CALPERS:Service Costs 337,424.00
3-6960 Pension Exp- CALPERS:Service Costs 477,475.00
1-2610 Pension Obligation 227,519.00

1-9989 ALD Pension Expenses - CalPERS | Non-Service Costs 109,905.00
3-2610 Pension Obligation 321,953.00

3-9989 ALD Pension Expenses - CalPERS | Non-Service Costs 155,522.00
Total 814,899.00 814,899.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 7

To record the current change in pensions

 

1-2114-001 Due to/from other fund-ASI 83,693.00
2-1200 Accounts Receivable 83,693.00
2-4015 Contribution from AS 83,693.00
1-6095 Contribution Expense from AS 83,693.00

2-2114-002 Due to/from other fund-CC 83,693.00
2-4300 Grant Income 83,693.00

Total 251,079.00 251,079.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 301

PBC FY24 Children's Center CCTR Additional Grant Funds

 

1-1200 Accounts Receivable 39,465.00
1-4150 Ticket Sales 39,465.00

Total 39,465.00 39,465.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 302

PBC FY24 Spring Concert Revenue Paid in July 2024

 

3-6590 Supplies 5,826.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 5,826.00

Total 5,826.00 5,826.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 303

PBC Accrue FY24 expenses
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Summary of Adjustments 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
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3-1800 Fixed Assets 6,813.00
3-7100 Depreciation Expense 81.00
3-1810 Accum Depreciation 81.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 6,813.00

Total 6,894.00 6,894.00

PBC Record fix asset purchase
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 304

 

3-4004 Capital Expenditure Reimbursemt 764,000.00
3-6360 Miscellaneous Expense 764,000.00

Total 764,000.00 764,000.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 305

PBC FY24 correct duplicate expense CapEx

 

1-1210 Acct Receivable -Related Party 68,760.00
1-1500 Prepaid Expenses 68,760.00

Total 68,760.00 68,760.00

PBC Zero out Athletic balance from prepaid to AR related party FY24
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 306

 

2-4300 Grant Income 83,693.00
2-1200 Accounts Receivable 83,693.00

Total 83,693.00 83,693.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 307

PBC Reverse FY24 Children's Center CCTR Additional Grant Funds

 

1-6095 Contribution Expense from AS 90,068.00
2-2114-002 Due to/from other fund-CC 90,068.00

2-4300 Grant Income 6,375.00
1-2114-001 Due to/from other fund-ASI 90,068.00

2-2200 Deferred Revenue 6,375.00
2-4015 Contribution from AS 90,068.00

Total 186,511.00 186,511.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 308

PBC FY24 Children's Center CCTR Deferred Income & Closing Entry

 

1-6080 Contract Services 2,160.00
3-2114-003 Due to/from other fund-TSC 2,160.00

3-6080 Contract Services 1,680.00
3-6090 Contract Wages 20,912.00
3-6090 Contract Wages 2.00

1-2114-001 Due to/from other fund-ASI 2,160.00
3-2100 ALD Related party payables 24,754.00

Total 26,914.00 26,914.00

PBC Accrued expenses - additional state fire marshall & contract services
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 309

 

DRAFT



ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Summary of Adjustments 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
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1-6280 In-Kind Expenses 199,205.00
3-2114-003 Due to/from other fund-TSC 199,205.00

3-6280 In-Kind Expenses 298,807.00
1-2114-001 Due to/from other fund-ASI 199,205.00

3-6280 In-Kind Expenses 388,449.00
3-6280 In-Kind Expenses 109,563.00

Total 697,217.00 697,217.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 310

Reclass JE#513 40% Accrued expenses - EO1000 Dues FY23-24 to AS 
f d

 

1-2114-001 Due to/from other fund-ASI 3,766.00
2-2200 Deferred Revenue 13,266.00
2-4015 Contribution from AS 3,766.00
2-4300 Grant Income 9,500.00
1-6095 Contribution Expense from AS 3,766.00
2-1200 Accounts Receivable 9,500.00

2-2114-002 Due to/from other fund-CC 3,766.00
2-4300 Grant Income 13,266.00

Total 30,298.00 30,298.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 311

Reclass FY24 QIRS Revenue to Deferred Revenue-Reverse

 

Total Adjusting Journal Entries 18,238,432.00 18,238,432.00

1-3101 Camp Titan Fund 26,490.00
3-3102 Food Pantry Reserve 18,000.00
3-3207 Cap Ex Reserve Fund 764,000.00
1-3000 Unrestricted Fund Balance 23,997.00
1-3202 Childrens Center Fund 2,493.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 101

To reclass contributions and releases for ASI and TSC.

Reclassifying Journal Entries

 
Total 808,490.00 808,490.00

1-4060 Unvestment Unealized Gain/Loss 332,975.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 102

To reclass realized gain from unrealized gain per investment statement.

 
Total 332,975.00 332,975.00

1-4045 Satisfaction of Restriction 46,490.00
3-4045 Satisfaction of Restriction 48,000.00
1-6360 Miscellaneous Expense 46,490.00
3-5001 Wages Student 5,000.00
3-6160 FP -Cost of Food and Donated Food 37,500.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 103

To reclassify release of net asset restrictions out of revenue
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Summary of Adjustments 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 

8 

Total 94,490.00 94,490.00

3-1830 Lease ROU Asset 57,800.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 104

To reclass accumulated amortization from Lease ROU asset.

 
Total 57,800.00 57,800.00

4-3000 Unrestricted Fund Balance 487,846.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 106

To reclass student club related party funds held to others

 
Total 487,846.00 487,846.00

1-1299 ALD Related Party AR 656,334.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 107

To reclass related party AR from Campus

 
Total 656,334.00 656,334.00

1-2102 Accrued CC Expenses 13,781.00
2-2100 Accrued Expenses 11,237.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 498,012.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 77,249.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 94,737.00

1-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 13,781.00
2-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 11,237.00
3-2100 ALD Related party payables 498,012.00
3-2100 ALD Related party payables 77,249.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 108

To reclass AP related party from accrued expenses

 
Total 695,016.00 695,016.00

1-2000 Accounts Payable 21,681.00
2-2000 Accounts Payable 5,104.00
3-2000 Accounts Payable 80,272.00

1-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 21,681.00
2-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 5,104.00

To reclass related party AP amounts from AP
Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 109

 
Total 107,057.00 107,057.00

2-1299 ALD Related Party AR 157,341.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 110

To reclass related party AR from ASC
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Total 157,341.00 157,341.00

1-2100 Accrued Expenses 9,052.00
2-2100 Accrued Expenses 2,445.00
3-2100 Accrued Expenses 44,485.00

1-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 9,052.00
2-2100 ALD Related Party Payable 2,445.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 111

To reclass related party accrued expenses not recorded by Campus

3-3999 ALD Prior Period Adjustment 923,066.00
3-4000 Student Fees 923,066.00

Total 923,066.00 923,066.00

To record return of FY23 student fees to correct year
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 901

1-1210 Acct Receivable -Related Party 392,826.00
1-4002 Campus Reimb 380,396.00

1-3999 ALD Prior Period Adjustment 380,396.00
1-4002 Campus Reimb 392,826.00

Total 773,222.00 773,222.00

Proposed Journal Entries JE # 902

To accrue FY23 and FY24 athletics fee in proper years

1-4060 Unvestment Unealized Gain/Loss 63,473.00
1-1400 Local Agency Investment Fund 63,473.00

Total 63,473.00 63,473.00

To record LAIF at fair market value at year-end
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 903
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DATE 

Aldrich CPAs + Advisors LLP 
7676 Hazard Center Drive, Suite 550 
San Diego, CA 92108 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Associated Students, 
Inc. California State University Fullerton (ASI), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 
2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the “financial statements”), for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to 
whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP).  

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered 
to be material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light 
of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the 
information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is 
monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.  

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this letter, the following representations made 
to you during your audit.  

Financial Statements  

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated April 20, 2023 
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. 

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP.  

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud. 

5) The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their related 
disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is reasonable in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP.  

6) Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

7) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

8) The effects of uncorrected misstatements below are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

Proposed Journal Entries      
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 901 T-01     
To record return of FY23 student fees to correct year 

     
3-3999 ALD Prior Period Adjustment   923,066.00   

3-4000 Student Fees     923,066.00 

Total    923,066.00  923,066.00 

       
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 902 L-04     
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To accrue FY23 and FY24 athletics fee in proper years 
     

1-1210 Acct Receivable -Related Party   392,826.00   
1-4002 Campus Reimb   380,396.00   

1-3999 ALD Prior Period Adjustment     380,396.00 

1-4002 Campus Reimb     392,826.00 

Total    773,222.00  773,222.00 

       
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 903 D-02     
To record LAIF at fair market value at year-end 

     
1-4060 Unvestment Unealized Gain/Loss   63,473.00   
1-1400 Local Agency Investment Fund     63,473.00 

Total    63,473.00  63,473.00 

       
 

9) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  

10) Material concentrations have been appropriately disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

11) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Organization is contingently liable, have been properly 
recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

12) We have informed you of all leases and we have calculated the lease liabilities and assets where required. The 
estimates used (lease lives, discount rates, residual values, etc.) and classifications (operating vs. finance) are 
appropriate. We have analyzed all lease contracts and have considered and recorded material embedded 
leases contained within other contracts in accordance with ASC 842. 

13) We have implemented ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit 
Losses on Financial Instruments effective January 1, 2023. We have implemented the new accounting standard 
in accordance with the transition guidance prescribed in the ASU. We have sufficient and appropriate 
documentation supporting all estimates and judgments underlying the amounts recorded and disclosed in the 
combined financial statements.. 

 

Information Provided  

14) We have provided you with: 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements, such as records (including information obtained from outside of the general and 
subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.  

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the Organization from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 

d) Minutes of the meetings of the governing board or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 
minutes have not yet been prepared.  

15) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements.  

16) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

17) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Organization and involves: 

a) Management, 
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b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

18) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization’s financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. 

19) We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and 
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

20) We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or 
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.  

21) We have disclosed to you the names of all of the Organization’s related parties and all the related-party 
relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.  

22) ASI has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has 
any asset been pledged as collateral. California State University Fullerton (University) owns all our buildings 
and all building improvements are to be transferred to the University when completed. 

23) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements 
applicable to us. 

24) Associated Students, Inc. California State University Fullerton is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3)  
of the Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the Organization’s 
tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business income or excise or other tax, have 
been disclosed to you. All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date. 

25) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplemental information in accordance with U.S. GAAP, 
and we believe the supplemental information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemental information have not 
changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.  

26) In regard to the non-attest services performed by you, we have- 

a) Assumed all management responsibilities. 

b) Designated an individual (within senior management) with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to 
oversee the services. 

c) Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed. 

d) Accepted responsibility for the results of the services. 

27) We have analyzed the accounting and reporting requirements and ASI is required to follow Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) standards. 

28) Net asset components are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

29) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded . 

30) Expenses have been appropriately directly charged to their various functions on the statement of functional 
expenses, and the allocation of expenses across functions is considered reasonable based on the nature of 
the supporting expenses that would be allocated. 

31) Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk, and investments are properly valued. 

32) ASI is not responsible for reporting revenue and expenses associated with club activities and should not report 
any of the financial activities for Athletics as those activities are reported by the University.   

 
Signature:     
 
Title: Executive Director   
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Signature:     
 
Title: Director of Financial Services  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton   
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Associated Students, Inc., California State 
University, Fullerton (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 
2024 and 2023, the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Associated Students, Inc., California State 
University, Fullerton’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial 
statements are available to be issued. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT, CONTINUED 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility, continued 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Supplemental Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
supplemental information included on pages 31-50 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated REPORT DATE - TBD, 
on our consideration of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
REPORT DATE - TBD 
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS

Cash $ 797,880 $ 1,674,428      
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,437
  (2024) and $4,437 (2023) 319,372 854,585
Accounts receivable, related parties 813,675         464,875
Investments 22,024,339 20,214,720
Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 1,328,155 1,446,833
Right-of-use asset - operating lease 292,751 -                 
Other assets 379,606 134,240

Total Assets $ 25,955,778    $ 24,789,681    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 184,628 $ 224,175
Related party payable 882,809         808,177
Accrued expenses 1,053,400 1,045,808
Deferred revenue 732,863 524,142
Lease liability - operating lease 294,600 -                     
Funds held for others 311,804         444,539
Related party funds held for others 487,846         426,943
Unfunded pension obligation 10,520,615    9,971,143
Unfunded post-retirement liability 2,442,036 2,672,470

Total Liabilities 16,910,601    16,117,397    

Net Assets:
Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 4,683,021      3,501,658      
Board designated (See Note 8) 4,222,714      4,986,187      

Total Without Donor Restrictions 8,905,735      8,487,845      

With donor restrictions 139,442         184,439         

Total Net Assets 9,045,177      8,672,284      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 25,955,778    $ 24,789,681    

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenue and Support:
Student activity fees $ 16,963,959    $ -                     $ 16,963,959    
In-kind contribution of facilities 8,428,525 -                     8,428,525      
Grants and contributions 1,454,837 100,261         1,555,098      
Student center fees 1,498,474 -                     1,498,474      
Other 1,329,426 -                     1,329,426      
Children's Center tuition 701,226         -                     701,226         
Net assets released from restrictions 145,258         (145,258)        -                     

Total Revenue and Support 30,521,705    (44,997)          30,476,708    

Expenses:
Program services:

Student services 13,602,197    -                     13,602,197    
Student recreation center 3,853,882      -                     3,853,882      
Children's Center 3,420,828      -                     3,420,828      

Total Program Expenses 20,876,907    -                     20,876,907    

Supporting services:
Building services 2,730,105      -                     2,730,105      
Public services 51,575           -                     51,575           
Administrative 8,519,048      -                     8,519,048      

Total Supporting Services 11,300,728 -                     11,300,728

Total Operating Expenses 32,177,635    -                     32,177,635    

Change in Net Assets from Operations (1,655,930)     (44,997)          (1,700,927)     

Non-Operating Income (Expense):
Pension and postretirement related changes
  other than service cost 690,373         -                     690,373         
Investment return 1,383,447      -                     1,383,447      

Total Non-Operating Income 2,073,820      -                     2,073,820      

Change in Net Assets 417,890         (44,997)          372,893         

Net Assets, beginning 8,487,845      184,439         8,672,284      

Net Assets, ending $ 8,905,735      $ 139,442         $ 9,045,177      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenue and Support:
Student activity fees $ 17,711,917    $ -                     $ 17,711,917    
In-kind contribution of facilities 8,428,525      -                     8,428,525      
Grants and contributions 1,284,496      253,820         1,538,316      
Student center fees 1,408,425      -                     1,408,425      
Other 717,363         -                     717,363         
Children's Center tuition 597,565         -                     597,565         
Administrative fees 330,815         -                     330,815         
Net assets released from restrictions 137,207         (137,207)        -                     

Total Revenue and Support 30,616,313    116,613         30,732,926    

Expenses:
Program services:

Student services 13,444,904    -                     13,444,904    
Student recreation center 3,847,138      -                     3,847,138      
Children's Center 2,973,531      -                     2,973,531      

Total Program Expenses 20,265,573    -                     20,265,573    

Supporting services:
Building services 2,685,783      -                     2,685,783      
Public services 162,853         -                     162,853         
Administrative 6,289,658      -                     6,289,658      

Total Supporting Services 9,138,294      -                     9,138,294      

Total Operating Expenses 29,403,867    -                     29,403,867    

Change in Net Assets from Operations 1,212,446      116,613         1,329,059      

Non-Operating Income (Expense):
Pension and postretirement related changes
  other than service cost (3,665,026)     -                     (3,665,026)     
Investment return 762,871         -                     762,871         

Total Non-Operating Expense (2,902,155)     -                     (2,902,155)     

Change in Net Assets (1,689,709)     116,613         (1,573,096)     

Net Assets, beginning 10,177,554    67,826           10,245,380    

Net Assets, ending $ 8,487,845      $ 184,439         $ 8,672,284      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 5
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Student 
Services

Student 
Recreation 

Center
Children's 

Center
Total 

Program
Building 
Services

Public 
Services Administrative Total

Salaries $ 2,151,117   $ 1,519,018 $ 1,760,040   $ 5,430,175   $ 715,825      $ -              $ 2,675,321      $ 8,821,321
Employee benefits and taxes 695,481      381,287    828,404      1,905,172   286,796      65            2,131,776      4,323,809

Total Personnel 2,846,598 1,900,305 2,588,444 7,335,347 1,002,621 65            4,807,097 13,145,130

Awards and scholarships 2,541,690   -                -                  2,541,690   -                  -              -                    2,541,690
Communications 24,776        12,632      5,898          43,306        2,351          80            26,774           72,511
Contracts and rentals 272,445      18,099      1,210          291,754      736             410          15,207           308,107       
Cost share from campus -                  -                -                  -                  -                  -              498,012         498,012
Depreciation and amortization -                  334           -                  334             -                  -              342,891         343,225
In-kind rent for facilities 5,907,365   1,642,284 468,700      8,018,349   148,149      -              262,027         8,428,525
Insurance 25,496        11,002      29,465        65,963        -                  -              327,540         393,503
Office and supplies 486,781      98,032      70,282        655,095      153,800      7,703       210,697         1,027,295
Other 505,601      114,975    24,101        644,677      5,213          43,170     534,802         1,227,862
Professional fees 751,518      11,201      199,624      962,343      1,292,393   137          688,709         2,943,582
Repairs and maintenance 56,083        26,967      835             83,885        40,709        -              120,068         244,662
Staff development 2,094          11,098      -                  13,192        1,800          -              41,690           56,682
Travel 181,750      6,953        2,821          191,524      424             10            65,963           257,921
Utilities -                  -                29,448        29,448        81,909        -              577,571         688,928

Total Operating Expenses 13,602,197 3,853,882 3,420,828 20,876,907 2,730,105 51,575 8,519,048 32,177,635

Pension and postretirement related 
  changes other than service cost (55,851)       (67,518)     (135,865)     (259,234)     (3,107)         -              (428,032)       (690,373)      

Total Expenses $ 13,546,346 $ 3,786,364 $ 3,284,963 $ 20,617,673 $ 2,726,998 $ 51,575 $ 8,091,016 $ 31,487,262

Program Services Supporting Services

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Student 
Services

Student 
Recreation 

Center
Children's 

Center
Total 

Program
Building 
Services

Public 
Services Administrative Total

Salaries $ 2,400,824   $ 1,395,592 $ 1,522,200   $ 5,318,616   $ 610,750      $ 66,560     $ 2,438,780      $ 8,434,706
Employee benefits and taxes 816,169      335,316    620,387      1,771,872   397,756      5,589       1,290,335      3,465,552

Total Personnel 3,216,993 1,730,908 2,142,587 7,090,488 1,008,506 72,149     3,729,115 11,900,258

Awards and scholarships 2,289,527   -                -                  2,289,527   -                  -              -                    2,289,527
Communications 30,728        10,982      1,289          42,999        2,106          132          18,152           63,389
Contracts and rentals 287,956      64,612      44,970        397,538      214,972      2,723       92,942           708,175
Depreciation -                  -                -                  -                  -                  -              313,841         313,841
In-kind rent for facilities 5,907,365   1,642,284 468,700      8,018,349   148,150      -              262,026         8,428,525
Insurance 31,021        35,869      11,237        78,127        -                  -              251,961         330,088
Office and supplies 628,749      110,562    65,179        804,490      57,893        43,112     60,092           965,587
Other 421,687      68,783      18,248        508,718      11,516        20,952     211,481         752,667
Professional fees 331,408      26,353      106,838      464,599      1,001,235   23,785     222,293         1,711,912
Repairs and maintenance 109,218      117,641    71,967        298,826      119,901      -              368,404         787,131
Staff development 11,829        10,499      1,481          23,809        3,945          -              31,764           59,518
Travel 178,423      28,620      3,276          210,319      2,392          -              31,042           243,753
Utilities -                  25             37,759        37,784        115,167      -              696,545         849,496

Total Operating Expenses 13,444,904 3,847,138 2,973,531 20,265,573 2,685,783 162,853 6,289,658 29,403,867

Pension and postretirement related 
  changes other than service cost 913,691      491,846    608,761      2,014,298   286,605      20,158     1,343,965      3,665,026

Total Expenses $ 14,358,595 $ 4,338,984 $ 3,582,292 $ 22,279,871 $ 2,972,388 $ 183,011 $ 7,633,623 $ 33,068,893

Program Services Supporting Services

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 7

DRAFT



ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Change in net assets $ 372,893         $ (1,573,096)     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 343,225         313,841         
Loss on sale of property and equipment 14,426           -                     
Unrealized gain on investments (211,513)        (375,387)        
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 535,213         (556,438)        
Accounts receivable, related (348,800)        2,464,376      
Other assets (245,366)        (25,349)          
Accounts payable (39,547)          389                
Related party payable 74,632           234,500         
Accrued expenses 7,592             (262,223)        
Deferred revenue 208,721         123,834         
Funds held for others (132,735)        (7,306)            
Related party funds held for others 60,903           (15,854)          
Pension obligation 549,472         3,608,784      
Unfunded post-retirement liability (230,434)        240,300         

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 958,682         4,170,371      

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of furniture and equipment (180,423)        (475,797)        
Sale of investments 14,875,762    9,732,430      
Purchase of investments (16,473,868)   (12,818,636)   

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,778,529)     (3,562,003)     

Cash Flows Used by Financing Activity:
Payments on finance lease liability (56,701)          -                     

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (876,548)        608,368         

Cash, beginning 1,674,428      1,066,060      

Cash, ending $ 797,880         $ 1,674,428      

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing Activity:
Right-of-use asset - finance lease acquired under lease liability $ 351,301         -                     

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 8
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Note 1 - Organization  

Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton (ASI), is a California public benefit corporation 
which is an auxiliary organization to California State University, Fullerton (the University). The purpose of ASI is to 
further educational services and related activities of the students of the University. Student activity fees and other 
revenue are collected to support student-related programs and to acquire assets for the benefit of the student 
body. ASI consists of two departments, Associated Students and Titan Student Center.  
 
ASI’s financial statements are presented by major program activities. The major programs are: 
 

Student Services 
ASI advises, supports and oversees the functions of student government, as well as a variety of student 
programs. Additionally, ASI plans and implements a variety of student leader development, training, and 
retreat programs hosted throughout the year. The Student Government department aids student leaders, 
including the Board of Directors, Executive Officers, and the Inter-Club Councils, in navigating their 
experiences in ASI and serving the students of the University.  
 
ASI provides expertise in planning and completion of events and activities for students. Additionally, ASI 
advises student leaders on budget and finance, and monitors the campus funding/funded councils, 
organizations, and clubs receiving funding from ASI. ASI is also responsible for administering and 
overseeing Student Research Grants and providing office and storage spaces for clubs and activities.  
 
Student Recreation Center 
The Student Recreation Center (SRC) features a cardio floor, weight room, 35-foot-high rock wall, indoor 
jogging track, outdoor swimming pool, and 22,000 square feet of gymnasium space. Titan Recreation, the 
recreational arm of ASI, offers aquatics, personal training, instructional fitness, rock climbing training, and 
intramural sports. With the addition of the F45 fitness classes and Outdoor Adventure programs, the SRC 
continues to expand to meet the needs of a growing student population.  
 
University students who have paid the Student Center fee receive access to the SRC and all the programs 
offered by Titan Recreation. Memberships are also available to the rest of the campus community and 
alumni. 
 
Children’s Center 
The Children’s Center (Center) provides top-quality care and an exceptional educational program for the 
children of University students, faculty, and staff. It serves the fundamental purpose of making higher 
education accessible to student parents by offering affordable and quality childcare. The Center also 
provides subsidized childcare for low-income students, which enables many to attend who otherwise could 
not afford or arrange for childcare.  
 

ASI’s financial statements also include supporting services in the following categories: 
 

Building Services 
Provides all maintenance of ASI’s three facilities and surrounding grounds as delineated in the campus 
agreement. The Building Engineering department is responsible for maintenance of facilities and building 
systems, custodial services, landscape maintenance, and leaseholder improvements. The Building 
Engineering coordinates with University Facilities to oversee appropriate maintenance of fire/life safety 
systems, elevator maintenance, and access to utilities. ASI reimburses the University for any costs 
associated with facility maintenance, improvement, and utilities. 
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Note 1 - Organization, continued 

Public Services 
ASI supports the University Arboretum, which is the botanical garden located on campus, by providing 
financial support to employ student employees. Additionally, ASI provides programming services to external 
stakeholders through our summer youth camp programs as well as Camp Titan and Learn to Swim programs 
year-round. 
 
Administrative 
Administration of ASI includes oversight of all departments as well as risk management, strategic planning, 
assessment, and compliance with California State University (CSU) and University regulations and California 
non-profit corporate law. ASI administration includes Human Resources, Financial Services, Building 
Engineering, and IT Services. 

 
ASI and the University have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to provide accounting services 
to the Intercollegiate Athletic Program. The services provided by ASI under the terms of the agreement include, 
but are not limited to: NCAA audit assistance, process and issue payments for scholarships, travel, student 
grants, personnel expenses, and the issuance of financial reports. Funds are advanced by ASI to cover expenses 
and are reimbursed monthly. At the end of the fiscal year there may be a “Due from the University” balance 
shown on ASI’s financial statements reflecting a balance owed to ASI and collected in the following fiscal year. 
ASI processes payments that are generated and approved by the University and Athletics, therefore ASI does not 
record expenses related to this activity. 
 
ASI and the University have entered into a MOU to provide accounting services to the University’s Instructionally 
Related Activities (IRA). The services provided by ASI under the terms of the agreement include, but are not 
limited to: promotional, operational, and general services and materials. Such services and materials include 
budget preparation and coordination, accounting services, administrative and fiscal support to IRA accounts and 
the University IRA Advisory Committee. The MOU has been terminated as of July 1, 2023. As ASI considered 
themselves as an agent when operating this program, this discontinuation has no effect on the statements of 
activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 
 
 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of ASI have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (US GAAP), which requires ASI to report information regarding its financial 
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:  
 

Net assets without donor restrictions – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may 
be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of ASI. These net assets may be used at 
the discretion of ASI’s management and the Board of Directors. 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions – Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors. 
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of ASI or by the 
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds 
be maintained in perpetuity. ASI did not have any donor restrictions that were perpetual in nature for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Estimates 
ASI uses estimates in preparing financial statements in conformity with US GAAP. Those estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
ASI’s financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes, include cash, accounts receivable, and 
accounts payable. ASI estimates that the fair value of all of these nonderivative financial instruments at June 30, 
2024 and 2023 does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded 
in the accompanying statements of financial position.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
Account receivables are stated at unpaid balances, less an allowance for doubtful accounts. ASI provides for 
losses on account receivables using the allowance method. The allowance is based on the length of time the 
receivable has been outstanding and management’s estimate of collectability.  
 
Investment Valuation and Income Recognition 
ASI’s investments are stated at fair value in the statements of financial position, with all gains and losses included 
in the statements of activities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the statement of financial position date. 
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual 
basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Realized gains or losses on the sale of marketable 
securities are calculated using the specific-identification method. Unrealized gains and losses represent the 
change in the fair value of the individual investments for the year, or since the acquisition date, if acquired during 
the year. 
 
Furniture and Equipment 
Legal title to the Titan Student Union building, Recreational Center, and Children’s Center building are retained by 
the California State University Board of Trustees. Initial furnishings and equipment were purchased by the 
University. Accordingly, the related assets and liabilities are excluded from ASI’s financial statements. Any 
purchases following the opening that are for building or building improvements are paid for by ASI and 
subsequently transferred to the University for capitalization according to the University policy. Any purchases of 
equipment or furniture are purchased by ASI and recorded as furniture and equipment on ASI’s financial 
statement according to ASI’s capitalization policy. 
 
ASI capitalizes all furniture and equipment with a normal useful life of at least one year and costing $5,000 or 
more if purchased, or at fair value as of the date of receipt, if donated. Depreciation is provided for using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 20 years. Repairs and 
maintenance expenses are capitalized if they extend the useful life or enhance the value of the asset and are over 
$5,000. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued  

Leases 
The Company adheres to the accounting standard for leases, which provides detailed guidance for financial 
statement recognition, measurement, and disclosure of leases. The significant policies used by the Company to 
assist in determining the financial statement treatment of leasing arrangements are described in Note 11. 
 
Funds Held for Others 
Funds held for others consists of amounts that are included in cash and investments of ASI but belong to other 
related organizations. The amounts are reported as an asset and a liability for the same amount. No revenue or 
expenses are recognized for these activities. 
 
Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension obligation related to pensions, and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Member contributions are recognized in 
the period in which they are deposited in the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Student activity fees – Students are required to pay an Associated Student Body (ASB) fee each semester. Of 
these fees, specific amounts are designated for Associated Students, the Titan Student Center, and Athletics. The 
ASB fees are recognized as revenue when they are received from the University, net of any University fees and 
bond payments. The CSU Board of Trustees has the right of first call on these funds for revenue bond debt 
service requirements and repairs and replacement of assets. The remaining funds are available for use in the 
operations of ASI. Any fees that are received in advance of the school year are recorded as deferred revenue.  
 
In-kind contribution of facilities – As noted in Note 10, ASI is provided the use of the Titan Student Union, 
Recreation Center, and Children’s Center at no cost. US GAAP requires an estimate of the value of the space 
contributed to ASI be recorded as revenue and expense. The amount recorded was based on the total square 
footage of each facility and a cost per square foot estimate. 
 
Grants and contributions – Grant revenue is recognized in the period in which the related work is performed in 
accordance with the terms of the grant. Grants receivable are recorded when revenue earned under a grant or 
contract exceeds the cash received. Deferred revenue is recorded when cash received under a grant or contract 
exceeds the revenue earned. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as management believes 
that all amounts are collectible.  
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued  

Revenue Recognition, continued 
Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Donor restricted contributions are 
reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net 
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  
 
Functional Expense Allocations 
The cost of providing program and other activities has been summarized on a functional basis in the statements 
of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefitted. Such allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. All other expenses 
are directly charged to the programs or support services benefitted. 
 
The expenses that are allocated include the following: 
 

Expense Method of Allocation
Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Pension benefits Full time salaries
Insurance and utilities Square footage

Depreciation Function usage
Custodial services (included in Professional Fees) Square footage  

 
Income Taxes 
ASI is a qualified nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. However, ASI remains 
subject to taxes on any net income, which is derived from a trade or business regularly carried on and unrelated 
to its exempt purpose.  
 
ASI follows accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America related to the recognition of 
uncertain tax positions. ASI recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as 
part of the statement of activities, when applicable. Management has determined that ASI has no uncertain tax 
positions at June 30, 2024 and 2023 and therefore, no amounts have been accrued.  
 
Subsequent Events 
ASI has evaluated subsequent events through REPORT DATE - TBD, which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
 
  

DRAFT



ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

14 

Note 3 - Liquidity and Availability 

The following reflects ASI’s financial assets at June 30, less amounts not available for general use due to donor 
or board restrictions. 
 

2024 2023
Financial assets at year end:

Cash $ 797,880 $ 1,674,428     
Accounts receivable, net 1,133,047     1,319,460     
Investments 22,024,339    20,214,720    

Total financial assets 23,955,266    23,208,608    

Less amounts not available for general use:
Cash held for others (172,440)       (842,307)       
Investments held for others (629,691)       (629,691)       
Donor restricted for non-operating purposes (139,442)       (184,439)       
IRA receivables -               (128,835)       
Board designated funds (4,222,714)    (4,986,187)    

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general 
  expenditures due within one year $ 18,790,979    $ 16,437,149    

 
ASI reserve funds are maintained to address the long-term financial needs of the organization and include 
Undesignated, Children’s Center, Working Capital, and Restricted (Scholarships) Funds. In addition, ASI 
continues to meet the need to fund ASI’s unfunded pension obligations through the maintenance of the reserve 
funds. ASI has a goal to have the working capital reserve fund balance equal to 15% of the operating budget. 
These funds can be re-designated upon the approval of the board of directors should the funds be needed for 
other purposes. There are also funds held by the University that can be used for repairs and maintenance of ASI’s 
facilities. 
 
 
Note 4 - Investments 

Fair Value Measurements 
ASI defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid for a liability in the 
principal or most advantageous market. ASI applies fair value measurements to assets and liabilities that are 
required to be recorded at fair value under US GAAP. Fair value measurement techniques maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs and are categorized in a fair value hierarchy 
based on the transparency of inputs. The three levels are defined as follows: 

 
Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 
 
Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially 
the same term of the financial instrument. 
 
Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. 
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Note 4 - Investments, continued 

As a practical expedient, certain financial instruments may be valued using net asset value (NAV) per share. NAV 
is the amount of net assets attributable to each share of outstanding capital stock at the end of the period. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value: 

 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) – Invested with the State of California which pools these funds with 
other governmental agencies and invests in various investment vehicles. These pooled funds approximate 
fair value and are carried at NAV. Regulatory oversight is provided by the State Pooled Money Investment 
Board and the Local Investment Advisory Board.  
 
Cash and Equivalents – Includes cash and money market funds valued at cost plus accrued interest. 
 
Equities – Valued at quoted market prices in active markets, which approximates fair value. 
 
Fixed Income – Valued at cost plus interest, which approximates fair value. 

 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 356,443     $ -             $ -               $ -                $ 356,443     
Fixed Income:

U.S. government and agency bonds 377,308     -             -               -                377,308     
Corporate bonds 896,129     -             -               -                896,129     
Foreign bonds 39,023       -             -               -                39,023       

Equities:
Technology 970,284     -             -               -                970,284     
Healthcare 560,626     -             -               -                560,626     
Financial services 420,594     -             -               -                420,594     
Consumer cyclical 271,256     -             -               -                271,256     
Industrial 362,713     -             -               -                362,713     
Communication services 268,769     -             -               -                268,769     
Consumer Defensive 173,031     -             -               -                173,031     
Real estate 69,140       -             -               -                69,140       
Basic materials 29,400       -             -               -                29,400       

LAIF -                -             -               17,229,623 17,229,623 

$ 4,794,716  $ -             $ -               $ 17,229,623 $ 22,024,339 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2024

Commitments and redemption schedules for those investments' value based on net asset values are as follows:
 

 Unfunded   Redemption 
Description  Fair Value Commitments  Frequency  Notice 

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 17,229,623 $ -             n/a n/a
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Note 4 - Investments, continued 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 302,516 $ -             $ -               $ -                $ 302,516
Fixed Income:

U.S. government and agency bonds 534,688     -             -               -                534,688
Corporate bonds 471,257     -             -               -                471,257
Foreign bonds 55,347       -             -               -                55,347
Mortgage backed gov't issued 47,990       -             -               -                47,990

Equities:
Technology 658,195     -             -               -                658,195
Healthcare 585,302     -             -               -                585,302
Financial 394,635     -             -               -                394,635
Consumer cyclical 314,679     -             -               -                314,679
Industrial 256,092     -             -               -                256,092
Communication services 197,020     -             -               -                197,020
Consumer discretionary 180,401     -             -               -                180,401
Real estate 85,307       -             -               -                85,307
Credit services 34,840       -             -               -                34,840
Utilities 25,212       -             -               -                25,212

LAIF -                -             -               16,071,239 16,071,239

$ 4,143,481  $ -             $ -               $ 16,071,239 $ 20,214,720 

 
Commitments and redemption schedules for those investments’ value based on net asset values are as follows: 
 

 Unfunded   Redemption 
Description  Fair value Commitments  frequency  notice 

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 16,071,239 $ -             n/a n/a

 
 
Note 5 - Furniture and Equipment 

The following is a summary of furniture and equipment as of June 30: 
 

2024 2023

Furniture and equipment $ 3,622,195 $ 3,892,767
Less accumulated depreciation (2,294,040)    (2,445,934)    

$ 1,328,155     $ 1,446,833     
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Note 6 - Pension Plan 

ASI participates in a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan through the CalPERS which covers 
substantially all regular full-time employees of ASI. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative 
agent for participating public entities with the state of California and reports information to ASI. 
 
CalPERS released information providing ASI with a net pension liability measured as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. 
This estimate was used to record the unfunded liability at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
Plan Description 
Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan under 
CalPERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 
administered by CalPERS. The Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan is comprised of a 
Miscellaneous Risk Pool and a Safety Risk Pool. Individual employers may sponsor more than one Miscellaneous 
or Safety plan. ASI sponsors three Miscellaneous Risk Pool plans, however, the information presented represents 
the sum of the allocated pension amounts for each of ASI's respective plans (the Plan). The Plan provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law.  
 
Benefits Provided 
The Plan provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to eligible plan members. Benefits are based on years of service credit, a benefit factor and the member’s final 
compensation. All members are eligible for employment related disability benefits regardless of length of service 
and non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. Disability benefits are determined in the same manner 
as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. The Post-Retirement Death 
Benefit is a one-time payment made to a retiree’s designated survivor or estate upon the retiree’s death. The 
Basic Death Benefit is a lump sum paid to any member’s beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. 
The spouse or registered domestic partner of a deceased member, who was eligible to retire for service at the 
time of death, may elect to receive the Pre-Retirement Option 2W Death Benefit in lieu of the Basic Death Benefit 
lump sum. The Pre-Retirement Option 2W Death Benefit is a monthly allowance equal to the amount the member 
would have received if he/she had retired for service on the date of death and elected Option 2W, the highest 
monthly allowance a member can leave a spouse or domestic partner. The cost of living adjustments for each 
plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  
 
The First Tier Plan closed to new entrants on or after June 26, 2011. The Second Tier Plan was closed to new 
entrants on or after December 31, 2012.  
 
The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows: 
 

First Tier Plan Second Tier Plan PEPRA Misc. Plan

Hire date
On or before 

June 25, 2011

June 26, 2011 - 
December 31, 

2012
On or after 

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 60 62
Required employee contribution rate 5.000% 5.000% 7.000%
Required employer contribution rate 14.15% 12.33% 7.91%

Miscellaneous Risk Pool
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Note 6 - Pension Plan, continued  

Contributions 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution 
rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 
1, following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions are determined annually through the CalPERS 
annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
accrued liability.  
 
ASI is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. The contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of annual payroll. The contribution rates for 
each plan for the year ended June 30, 2024 are presented above and the total ASI contributions were $814,899 
($846,131 in 2023). These contributions are not included in the liability as they were made after the valuation 
date. 
 
Pension Liabilities and Pension Expense  
As of June 30, 2024, ASI reported net pension liabilities totaling $10,520,615 ($9,971,143 in 2023). The net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023. ASI's net pension liability was based on a projection of ASI's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, ASI's proportion was 0.13%. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2023, measurement period was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2023. The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2022, measurement period 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022. The June 30 total pension liability was based on 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions:  
 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount rate 6.90% 6.90%
Consumer price inflation 2.30% 2.30%
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality rate table

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Derived using CalPERS' Membership 
Data for all Funds

Derived using CalPERS' Membership 
Data for all Funds

 
Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS experience study 
adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the post-retirement mortality rates, those revised rates include 
15 years of mortality improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.  
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) 
and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-
term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was 
set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits 
for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was 
then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 
expenses.  
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Note 6 - Pension Plan, continued  

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions, continued 
The target allocation and best estimates of long-term expected real rate of return by asset class are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Assumed Asset Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10
Global equity-cap-weighted 30% 4.45%
Global equity non-cap-weighted 12% 3.84%
Private equity 13% 7.28%
Treasury 5% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10% 1.56%
High Yield 5% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5% 2.48%
Private Debt 5% 3.57%
Real Assets 15% 3.21%
Leverage -5% -0.59%  

 
Discount Rate  
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90% for the measurement period ended June 
30, 2023, and 6.90% for the measurement period ended June 30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 
statutory contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine total 
pension liability.  
 
The following presents ASI's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2024, calculated using 
the current discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate:  
 

Discount Rate
Net Pension 

Liability

1% decrease (5.80%) $ 15,172,952         
Current discount rate (6.80%) 10,520,615         
1% increase (7.80%) 6,708,412           
 
The following presents ASI's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2023, calculated using 
the current discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate:  
 

Discount Rate
Net Pension 

Liability
1% decrease (5.80%) $ 14,363,749         
Current discount rate (6.80%) 9,971,143           
1% increase (7.80%) 6,370,743           
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Note 6 - Pension Plan, continued  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about CalPERS Miscellaneous Risk Plan fiduciary net position is available in a separate 
comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the 
CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.  
 
 
Note 7 - Postretirement Health Benefit Plan 

In addition to providing pension benefits, ASI sponsors a defined benefit postretirement medical plan. Employees 
are eligible for certain medical benefits under the plan if they meet certain age and service requirements at the 
time of retirement. ASI accrues actuarially determined costs ratably to the date an employee becomes eligible for 
such benefits. The following tables set forth further information about ASI’s postretirement health benefit plan 
obligation and funded status as of June 30: 
 

2024 2023

Projected benefit obligation $ (7,567,295)    $ (7,339,148)    
Plan assets at fair value 5,125,259     4,666,678     

Funded status at end of year $ (2,442,036)    $ (2,672,470)    

Benefits paid $ 399,521        $ 356,846        

Postretirement benefit payable $ 2,442,036     $ 2,672,470     
 

Amounts recognized in the statements of activities at June 30 consist of: 
 

2024 2023
Service cost $ 194,512        $ 155,911        
Interest cost 349,947        295,060        
Employer contributions 83,209          (80,846)         
Actuarial gain (loss) (123,521)       377,809        
Asset return (734,581)       (507,634)       

$ (230,434)       $ 240,300        

 
The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost, other than the service cost component, are included 
in the line item pension and postretirement related changes other than service cost in the statements of activities 
and functional expenses. 
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Note 7 - Postretirement Health Benefit Plan, continued 

Actuarial assumptions that were utilized in the calculation of the unfunded liability for the years ended June 30: 
 
Expected future benefit payments expected to be paid during the year ending: 
 

Year ending
June 30,

2025 313,328$          
2026 314,827            
2027 315,059            
2028 314,082            
2029 326,669            
2030 341,765            
2031 354,636            
2032 359,458            
2033 378,701             

 
The following presents ASI's accrued postretirement benefit obligation calculated using the current medical cost 
trend rate as well as what the accrued postretirement benefit obligation would be if it were calculated using a rate 
that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate at June 30, 2024:  
 

Discount Rate

Projected 
Benefit 

Obligation

1% decrease (3.41%) $ 6,671,214     
Current discount rate (5.32%) 7,567,295     
1% increase (5.41%) 8,661,637     

 
 
The following presents ASI's accrued postretirement benefit obligation calculated using the current medical cost 
trend rate as well as what the accrued postretirement benefit obligation would be if it were calculated using a rate 
that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate at June 30, 2023: 
 

Discount Rate

Projected 
Benefit 

Obligation

1% decrease (3.41%) $ 8,408,349     
Current discount rate (4.41%) 7,339,148     
1% increase (5.41%) 6,464,325      
 

  

DRAFT



ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

22 

Note 8 - Net Assets 

Included in ASI’s net assets without donor restrictions are Board designated reserve funds. Reserve funds are 
accounts that have been created by the Board of Directors for specific purposes.  
 
The following are net assets without donor restrictions that are reserved for a specific purpose by the Board of 
Directors as of June 30: 
 

2024 2023

Children's Center Building Fund $ 2,000,000     $ 2,000,000     
Working Capital Reserve 1,130,414     1,894,414     
Catastrophic Reserve 360,000        360,000        
Loss of External Funding Reserve 434,250        434,250        
Equipment Replacement Reserve 297,523        297,523        
Titan Recreation Center 527              -               

Total Designations $ 4,222,714     $ 4,986,187      
 
The Children’s Center Building Fund was established by ASI’s Board of Directors to address the future repairs 
and equipment replacement needs of the Children’s Center. Funds in this reserve are invested, according to ASI 
policy, and governed by ASI’s Board of Directors and Investment Committee. The minimum fund balance is set at 
$2,000,000.  
 
Net assets with donor restrictions consist of contributions that have been restricted to the following purposes as of 
June 30: 
 

2024 2023

Food pantry $ 84,021          $ 105,021        
Camp Titan 13,087          39,577          
Scholarships 24,984          24,983          
Children's Center 17,350          14,858          

$ 139,442        $ 184,439        
 
During the year ended June 30, the following assets were released from restrictions: 
 

2024 2023
Satisfaction of Purpose Restrictions:

Camp Titan $ 46,490          $ 86,726          
Food pantry 76,001          42,480          
Scholarships 22,767          8,000            

$ 145,258        $ 137,207         
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Note 9 - Related Parties 

ASI entered into transactions during the fiscal year with the University, which is considered a related party. There 
were also transactions between the University and the IRA and Athletics activity for which ASI manages but does 
not record in the statement of activities as noted in Note 1. 
 
ASI receives grant and rent payments from CSU Fullerton Auxiliary Services Corporation, a related party. 
 
Total receipts, disbursements, receivables, and payables for the ASI portion of these activities for the year ended 
June 30 were as follows:  
 
Related Party Description 2024 2023
Revenues from:

University Activity fees $ 16,963,959    $ 17,711,917    
University Plus amounts recognized in prior year -                   1,981,293     

Total student activity fees $ 16,963,959    $ 19,693,210    

University Services, space, and programs $ 2,297,499     $ 629,818        

Auxiliary Services Children's center grant $ 172,635        $ 146,258        
Corporation Rent and commissions 245,845        177,594        

$ 418,480        $ 323,852        

Expenses to:

University Salaries of University personnel $ 220,429        $ 372,438
University Other than salaries 3,410,581     3,105,916

$ 3,631,010     $ 3,478,354     
 
The amounts received and paid by ASI to the University for the activities of IRA and Athletics are as follows at 
June 30: 
 

2024 2023

Transfers to the University for Athletics $ -                   $ (39,332)         

Transfers from the University for Athletics $ (3,529,279)    $ (2,621,516)    

Transfers to the University for IRA $ 598,962        $ (856,430)       

Transfers from the University for IRA $ -                   $ 2,990,074     
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Note 9 - Related Parties, continued 

Amounts due to and due from related parties at June 30 consist of the following: 
 
Related party Description Reported In 2024 2023
Due from:

University IRA activities Accounts receivable, 
related party $ -                     $ 128,835         

University Various services Accounts receivable, 
related party 656,334         336,040

Auxiliary Services 
Corporation

Children's center grant Accounts receivable, 
related party 157,341         -                     

813,675         464,875         
Accounts receivable, 
related party (380,396)        -                     

$ 433,279         $ 464,875         
Due to:

University IRA activities Related party payable $ -                     $ 402,867         
University Various services Related party payable 882,809         405,310
University Various services Related party funds held 

for others 487,846         426,943         

1,370,655      1,235,120      
Related party payable

16,492           495,861         
Related party payable

(55,982)          -                     

$ 1,331,165      $ 1,730,981      

Minus amounts accrued by 
ASI but not University

Plus amounts paid prior to 
June 30

Minus amounts accrued by 
ASI but not University

 
Any difference in receivables and payables balances between ASI and the University’s independent accounting 
records are a result of timing differences. 
 
For 2023, ASI had a contractual agreement with the University to provide promotional, operational, and general 
services and materials for IRA accounts. Such services and materials include budget preparation and 
coordination, accounting services, administrative and fiscal support to IRA and the campus IRA Advisory 
Committee. For 2024, services to the IRA were reduced to Committee support services. ASI receives an 
administrative fee from the University for managing and supporting the IRA funds. For the year ended June 30, 
2024, this fee was $94,845 ($330,815 in 2023) and is included in the statements of activities. 
 
 
Note 10 - Contributed Nonfinancial Assets 

ASI leases the Titan Student Union, Student Recreation Center, and the Children’s Center facilities from the 
University and acts as its operator under a lease in effect through December 31, 2033. No lease payments from 
ASI are required under this lease, but ASI reimburses the University for utilities and certain other costs. As such, 
ASI recognizes contributed nonfinancial assets for this activity as an in-kind contribution of facilities on the 
statement of activities.  
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Note 10 - Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, continued 

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, contributed in-kind revenue and lease expense recorded, to reflect 
the fair market value of the space utilized, was $8,428,526 for each year. The revenue and expense are 
calculated by the University on a biennial basis using the fair market rate that they would charge an unrelated 
third-party to lease the same space. As required, ASI will also pay for building maintenance and improvements 
which are expensed in the statements of activities and transferred to campus. 
 
 
Note 11 - Leasing Arrangements 

ASI leases equipment under finance lease agreement which expire on December 11, 2026. Leases with an initial 
term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet. Lease expense is recognized for these leases 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease agreements do not contain any material residual value 
guarantees. 
 
The ASI has elected the practical expedient to account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease 
component (e.g. maintenance and operating services). Therefore, for those leases, the lease payments used to 
measure the lease liability include all of the fixed consideration in the contract. All variable payments not based on 
a market rate or an index are expensed as incurred. 
 
ASI determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract inception. ASI recognizes a right-of-use asset 
and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value 
of the unpaid lease payments at the lease commencement date. Key estimates and judgments include how the 
Company determines the discount rate, the lease term, and the lease payments. 
 
When the discount rate implicit in a lease is not readily determinable, ASI calculates the lease liability using the 
risk-free rate. 
 
The following summarizes the finance right-of-use asset as of June 30, 2024: 
 

Finance Lease
Right-of-use assets $ 350,551
Accumulated amortization (57,800)

$ 292,751        

 
The amounts contractually due on finance lease liability as of June 30, 2024, were as follows:  
 

Year Ending
June 30,

2025 $ 124,864        
2026 124,864        
2027 61,011          

Total lease payments 310,739        
Less amount representing imputed interest (16,139)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 294,600        
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Note 11 - Leasing Arrangements, continued 

The following summarizes the line items in the income statement which include the components of lease expense 
for the year ended June 30, 2024: 
 
Finance lease:
    Amortization of lease assets, included in operating expenses $ 58,550          
    Interest on lease liabilities, included in interest expense 12,564          
Total lease cost $ 71,114          

 
Supplemental balance sheet information related to finance lease as of June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
 
Weighted average remaining lease term - Finance leases 2.5               

Weighted average discount rate - Finance leases 4.49%  
 
Lessee Arrangements 
As noted in Note 10, ASI leases the Titan Student Union, Student Recreation Center, and the Children’s Center 
facilities from the University and acts as its operator under a lease in effect through December 31, 2033. As these 
leases have no payment terms, they are accounted for as contributed nonfinancial assets rather than as leases. 
 
Lessor Arrangements 
Under the new lease standard, a lessor records a lease as sales-type, direct-financing, or operating. A lease is a 
sales-type lease if any one of five criteria are met indicating that the lease effectively transfers control of the 
underlying asset to the lessee. If those five criteria are not met, but two additional criteria are both met, indicating 
that the lessor has transferred substantially all the risks and benefits of the underlying asset to the lessee, the 
lease is a direct-financing lease. All leases that are not sales-type or direct-financing leases are operating leases. 
ASI elected the practical expedient that permitted it to not reassess under the new standard its prior conclusions 
about lease identification, lease classification, and initial direct costs. 
 
ASI subleases space within the Titan Student Union to CSU Fullerton Auxiliary Services Corporation (a related 
party), banks for ATMs, and to Amazon for its lockers. The subleases generate approximately $9,847 in lease 
revenue per month and expire on dates ranging from 2025 through 2026. Subleases have the option to extend 
upon mutual written consent from both parties. All these subleases are classified as operating leases. Revenue 
from these agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Some of the subleases include 
escalating payments which result in deferred lease incentives, which are included in prepaid expenses and other 
assets. 
 
ASI has elected the practical expedient under ASC 842 to account for the lease and non-lease components as a 
single lease component (e.g. maintenance and operating services). Therefore, for those subleases, the sublease 
payments include all of the fixed consideration in the contract. Certain of these sublease agreements provide for 
variable consideration related to common area maintenance charges, utilities, and taxes which are considered 
earned as incurred. Certain of these sublease agreements also provide for variable consideration related to a 
percentage of related lessee sales which are considered earned as incurred. 
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Note 11 - Leasing Arrangements, continued 

Sublease income is included in the statement of activities as part of other revenue and support. Cash receipts 
from operating subleases are classified within cash flows from operating activities. Sublease income was as 
follows for the year ended June 30, 2024: 
 

Related
Parties Others Total

ATMs $ 52,090          $ -                   $ 52,090          
Dining space 53,384          -                   53,384          
Lockers 1,584            -                   1,584            
Variable sublease income 138,787 -                   138,787        

Total sublease income $ 245,845        $ -                   $ 245,845        

 
Sublease income was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2023: 
 

Related
Parties Others Total

ATMs $ -                   $ 61,982          $ 61,982          
Dining space 55,133          -                   55,133          
Lockers -                   1,584            1,584            
Variable sublease income 122,461        -                   122,461        

Total sublease income $ 177,594        $ 63,566          $ 241,160        
 

 
As all of the assets being subleased are related to contributed nonfinancial assets recognized annually, there are 
no carrying amounts of the underlying assets related to these operating subleases. 
 
Future annual minimum sublease receipts are as follows: 
 

Related
Year Ending June 30, Parties Others Total

2025 $ 56,084          $ 63,770          $ 119,854        
2026 -                   15,701          15,701          

Total $ 56,084          $ 79,471          $ 135,555        
 

 
 
Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 
From time to time, ASI becomes involved in legal proceedings incidental to ASI. If and when a loss is deemed 
probable and reasonably estimable, ASI records the liability or expense in the financial statements. 
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Note 13 - Concentration of Credit Risk 

ASI maintains bank accounts which may, at times, exceed depository insurance limits and therefore expose ASI 
to credit risk. ASI maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) up to a limit of $250,000 per depositor. ASI monitors the cash balances regularly and 
evaluates the risk due to balances in excess of insurance limits. 
 
ASI is exposed to credit loss for the amount of investments in the event of nonperformance by LAIF or the state 
investment pools. However, management of ASI does not anticipate nonperformance by LAIF or the state 
investment pools. In accordance with ASI’s cash management policy, all excess cash is invested in LAIF or state 
investment pools. 
 
ASI has some exposure to investment risk, including interest rate, market, and credit risk for both marketable and 
non-marketable securities. Due to the level of risk exposure, it is possible that near-term valuation changes for 
investment securities may occur to an extent that could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Associated Students, Inc., California State University, Fullerton 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Associated Students, Inc., California State 
University, Fullerton (a nonprofit organization)(ASI), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 
30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE - 
TBD. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ASI’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ASI’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of ASI’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified.  
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ASI’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, CONTINUED 

 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
REPORT DATE - TBD 
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Schedule of Financial Position by Unit

June 30, 2024

Titan
ASI Student Center Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Cash $ 237,924               $ 559,956               $ -                          $ 797,880               
Accounts receivable, net 269,368               50,004                 -                          319,372               
Interfund receivables -                          31,008                 (31,008)               -                          
Accounts receivable, related parties 813,675               -                          -                          813,675               
Investments 12,032,541          9,991,798            -                          22,024,339          
Furniture and equipment, net 57,287                 1,270,868            -                          1,328,155            
Right-of-use asset - operating lease -                          292,751               -                          292,751               
Other assets 337,636               41,970 -                          379,606               

Total Assets $ 13,748,431 $ 12,238,355 $ (31,008)               $ 25,955,778          

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 142,227               $ 42,401                 $ -                          $ 184,628               
Interfund payable 31,008                 -                          (31,008)               -                          
Related party payable 63,300                 819,509               -                          882,809               
Accrued expenses 693,250               360,150               -                          1,053,400            
Deferred revenue 458,554               274,309               -                          732,863               
Lease liability - current portion -                          115,102               -                          115,102               
Funds held for others 311,804               -                          -                          311,804               
Related party funds held for others 487,846               -                          -                          487,846               
Unfunded pension obligation 4,356,256            6,164,359            -                          10,520,615          
Unfunded post-retirement liability 1,629,328            812,708               -                          2,442,036            
Lease liability - net of current portion -                          179,498               -                          179,498               

Total Liabilities 8,173,573            8,768,036            (31,008)               16,910,601          
Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated 2,709,137            1,973,884            -                          4,683,021            
Board designated 2,810,300 1,412,414            -                          4,222,714            

Total Without Donor Restrictions 5,519,437            3,386,298            -                          8,905,735            

With donor restrictions 55,421                 84,021                 -                          139,442               

Total Net Assets 5,574,858            3,470,319            -                          9,045,177            
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 13,748,431          $ 12,238,355          $ (31,008)               $ 25,955,778          

See independent auditor's report. 31
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ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INC., CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON

Schedule of Financial Position by Unit

June 30, 2023

Titan
ASI Student Center IRA Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Cash $ 370,813 $ 722,068 $ 581,547               $ -                          $ 1,674,428
Accounts receivable, net 640,515 214,070 -                          -                          854,585
Interfund receivables -                          350,755               -                          (350,755)              -                          
Accounts receivable, related parties 336,040 -                          128,835 -                          464,875               
Investments 10,768,914 9,445,806 -                          -                          20,214,720
Furniture and equipment, net 75,648 1,371,185 -                          -                          1,446,833
Other assets 71,960 62,280 -                          -                          134,240

Total Assets $ 12,263,890          $ 12,166,164          $ 710,382               $ (350,755)              $ 24,789,681
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ -                          $ -                          $ 224,175 $ -                          $ 224,175               
Interfund payable 350,755               -                          -                          (350,755)              -                          
Related party payable 33,602                 345,740               428,835 -                          808,177               
Accrued expenses 700,807               345,001 -                          -                          1,045,808            
Deferred revenue 368,086               156,056               -                          -                          524,142               
Funds held for others 387,167 -                          57,372                 -                          444,539               
Related party funds held for others 426,943 -                          -                          -                          426,943               
Unfunded pension obligation 4,128,737            5,842,406 -                          -                          9,971,143            
Unfunded post-retirement liability 1,735,328            937,142 -                          -                          2,672,470            

Total Liabilities 8,131,425            7,626,345            710,382               (350,755)              16,117,397          

Net Assets:
Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 1,138,253            2,363,405            -                          -                          3,501,658            
Board designated 2,809,773 2,176,414 -                          -                          4,986,187            

Total Without Donor Restrictions 3,948,026            4,539,819            -                          -                          8,487,845

With donor restrictions 184,439               -                          -                          -                          184,439               

Total Net Assets 4,132,465            4,539,819            -                          -                          8,672,284            
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 12,263,890          $ 12,166,164          $ 710,382               $ (350,755)              $ 24,789,681          
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Titan
ASI  Student Center Eliminations Total

Revenue and Support:
Student activity fees $ 7,013,938      $ 9,950,021       $ -                     $ 16,963,959    
In-kind contribution of facilities 925,100         7,503,425       -                     8,428,525      
Grants and contributions 1,494,549      60,549            -                     1,555,098      
Student center fees 99,945           1,398,529       -                     1,498,474      
Other 871,292         458,134          -                     1,329,426      
Children's Center tuition 701,226         -                     -                     701,226         
Administrative fees 2,337,376      -                     (2,337,376)     -                     

Total Revenue and Support 13,443,426    19,370,658     (2,337,376)     30,476,708    

Expenses:
Program services:

Student services 5,338,335      8,263,862       -                     13,602,197    
Student recreation center -                    3,853,882       -                     3,853,882      
Children's Center 3,420,828      -                     -                     3,420,828      

Total Program Expenses 8,759,163      12,117,744     -                     20,876,907    

Supporting services:
Building services -                    5,067,481       (2,337,376)     2,730,105      
Public services 51,575           -                     -                     51,575           
Administrative 4,425,134      4,093,914       -                     8,519,048      

Total Supporting Services 4,476,709      9,161,395       (2,337,376)     11,300,728    

Total Operating Expenses 13,235,872    21,279,139     (2,337,376)     32,177,635    

Change in Net Assets 
  from Operations 207,554         (1,908,481)     -                     (1,700,927)     

Non-Operating Income (Expense):
Pension and postretirement related
  changes other than service cost 305,381         384,992          -                     690,373         
Investment income 929,458         453,989          -                     1,383,447      

Total Non-Operating Income 1,234,839      838,981          -                     2,073,820      

Change in Net Assets 1,442,393      (1,069,500)     -                     372,893         

Net Assets, beginning 4,132,465      4,539,819       -                     8,672,284      

Net Assets, ending $ 5,574,858      $ 3,470,319       $ -                     $ 9,045,177      

See independent auditor's report. 33
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Titan
ASI Student Center Eliminations Total

Revenue and Support:
Student activity fees $ 6,638,851      $ 11,073,066     $ -                     $ 17,711,917    
In-kind contribution of facilities 5,691,386      2,737,139       -                     8,428,525      
Grants and contributions 1,400,695      137,621          -                     1,538,316      
Student center fees 76,861           1,331,564       -                     1,408,425      
Other 279,097         438,266          -                     717,363         
Children's Center tuition 597,565 -                     -                     597,565         
Administrative fees 2,252,988      -                     (1,922,173)     330,815         

Total Revenue and Support 16,937,443    15,717,656     (1,922,173)     30,732,926    

Expenses:
Program Services:

Student services 9,433,563      4,011,341       -                     13,444,904    
Student recreation center -                    3,847,138       -                     3,847,138      
Children's Center 2,973,531      -                     -                     2,973,531      

Total Program Expenses 12,407,094    7,858,479       -                     20,265,573    

Supporting services:
Building services -                    4,607,956       (1,922,173)     2,685,783      
Public services 162,853         -                     -                     162,853         
Administrative 3,852,033      2,437,625       -                     6,289,658      

Total Supporting Services 4,014,886      7,045,581       (1,922,173)     9,138,294      

Total Operating Expenses 16,421,980    14,904,060     (1,922,173)     29,403,867    

Change in Net Assets
  from Operations 515,463         813,596          -                     1,329,059      

Non-Operating Income (Expense):
Pension and postretirement related
  changes other than service cost (1,532,769)    (2,132,257)     -                     (3,665,026)     
Investment return 522,671         240,200          -                     762,871         

Total Non-Operating Expense (1,010,098)    (1,892,057)     -                     (2,902,155)     

Change in Net Assets (494,635)       (1,078,461)     -                     (1,573,096)     

Net Assets, beginning 4,627,100      5,618,280       -                     10,245,380    

Net Assets, ending $ 4,132,465      $ 4,539,819       $ -                     $ 8,672,284      
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Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents                  797,880
Short-term investments             22,024,339
Accounts receivable, net               1,133,047
Lease receivable, current portion                           —
P3 receivable, current portion                           —
Notes receivable, current portion                           —
Pledges receivable, net                           —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets                           —

Total current assets             23,955,266
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents                           —
Accounts receivable, net                           —
Lease receivable, net of current portion                           —
P3 receivable, net of current portion                           —
Notes receivable, net of current portion                           —
Student loans receivable, net                           —
Pledges receivable, net                           —
Endowment investments                           —
Other long-term investments                           —
Capital assets, net               1,620,906
Other assets                  379,606

Total noncurrent assets               2,000,512
Total assets             25,955,778

Deferred outflows of resources:

Unamortized loss on debt refunding                           —
Net pension liability                           —
Net OPEB liability                           —
Leases                           —
P3                           —
Others                           —

Total deferred outflows of resources                           —
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Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable               1,067,437
Accrued salaries and benefits                  498,242
Accrued compensated absences, current portion                  482,987
Unearned revenues                  732,863
Lease liabilities, current portion                  115,136
SBITA liabilities - current portion                           —
P3 liabilities - current portion                           —
Long-term debt obligations, current portion                           —y j p ,
portion                           —
Depository accounts                           —
Other liabilities                           —

Total current liabilities               2,896,665
Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion                    72,171
Unearned revenues                           —
Grants refundable                           —
Lease liabilities, net of current portion                  179,464
SBITA liabilities, net of current portion                           —
P3 liabilities, net of current portion                           —
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion                           —y j p ,
current portion                           —
Depository accounts                  799,650
Net other postemployment benefits liability               2,442,036
Net pension liability             10,520,615
Other liabilities                           —

Total noncurrent liabilities             14,013,936
Total liabilities             16,910,601

Deferred inflows of resources:

P3 service concession arrangements                           —
Net pension liability                           —
Net OPEB liability                           —
Unamortized gain on debt refunding                           —
Nonexchange transactions                           —
Lease                           —
P3                           —
Others                           —

Total deferred inflows of resources                           —  
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Net position:

Net investment in capital assets               1,620,906
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable – endowments                           —
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships                  139,442
Research                           —
Loans                           —
Capital projects                           —
Debt service                           —
Others                           —

Unrestricted               7,284,829
Total net position               9,045,177
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Revenues:

Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross                           —
Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                           —

Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal                           —
State               1,555,098
Local                           —
Nongovernmental                           —

Sales and services of educational activities                           —
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross               1,498,474

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                           —
Other operating revenues             27,423,137

Total operating revenues             30,476,709
Expenses:

Operating expenses:

Instruction                           —
Research                           —
Public service                    51,575
Academic support                           —
Student services             26,307,838
Institutional support                           —
Operation and maintenance of plant               2,934,058
Student grants and scholarships               2,541,690
Auxiliary enterprise expenses                           —
Depreciation and amortization                  342,475

Total operating expenses             32,177,636
Operating income (loss)            (1,700,927)  
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Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

State appropriations, noncapital                           —
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital                           —
State financial aid grants, noncapital                           —
Local financial aid grants, noncapital                           —
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital                           —
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital                           —
Gifts, noncapital                           —
Investment income (loss), net               1,383,447
Endowment income (loss), net                           —
Interest expense                           —
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)                  690,373

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)               2,073,820
Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses)                  372,893

State appropriations, capital                           —
Grants and gifts, capital                           —
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments                           —

Increase (decrease) in net position                  372,893
Net position:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported               8,672,284
Restatements                           —
Net position at beginning of year, as restated               8,672,284
Net position at end of year               9,045,177  DRAFT
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1 Cash and cash equivalents:

Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments
All other restricted cash and cash equivalents

Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents                               -   

Current cash and cash equivalents                      797,880 
Total                    797,880 

2.1 Composition of investments:

Investment Type  Current  Noncurrent  Total 

Money market funds                      356,443                               -                      356,443 

Repurchase agreements                               -                                 -                                 -   

Certificates of deposit                               -                                 -                                 -   

U.S. agency securities                      377,308                               -                      377,308 

U.S. treasury securities                               -                                 -                                 -   

Municipal bonds                               -                                 -                                 -   

Corporate bonds                      896,129                               -                      896,129 

Asset backed securities                               -                                 -                                 -   

Mortgage backed securities                               -                                 -                                 -   

Commercial paper                               -                                 -                                 -   

Supranational                               -                                 -                                 -   

Mutual funds                               -                                 -                                 -   

Exchange traded funds                               -                                 -                                 -   

Equity securities                   3,125,813                               -                  3,125,813 

Alternative investments:
Private equity (including limited partnerships)                               -                                 -                                 -   

Hedge funds                               -                                 -                                 -   

Managed futures                               -                                 -                                 -   

Real estate investments (including REITs)                               -                                 -                                 -   

Commodities                               -                                 -                                 -   

Derivatives                               -                                 -                                 -   

Other alternative investment types                               -                                 -                                 -   

Other external investment pools                               -                                 -                                 -   

CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT)                               -                                 -                                 -   

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)                 17,229,623                               -                17,229,623 

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)                               -                                 -                                 -   

Other investments:
Foreign bonds                        39,023                               -                        39,023 

                              -                                 -                                 -   

                              -                                 -                                 -   

                              -                                 -                                 -   

                              -                                 -                                 -   

Total Other investments                        39,023                               -                        39,023 

Total investments              22,024,339                               -                22,024,339 

Less endowment investments (enter as negative number)                               -                                 -                                 -   
Total investments, net of endowments              22,024,339                               -                22,024,339 
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2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments:

Investment Type

 Total 

 Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1) 

 Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

 Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 Net Asset Value 
(NAV) 

Money market funds                    356,443                      356,443                               -                              -                                      -   
Repurchase agreements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Certificates of deposit                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
U.S. agency securities                    377,308                      377,308                               -                              -                                      -   
U.S. treasury securities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Municipal bonds                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Corporate bonds                    896,129                      896,129                               -                              -                                      -   
Asset backed securities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Mortgage backed securities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Commercial paper                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Supranational                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Mutual funds                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Exchange traded funds                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Equity securities                3,125,813                   3,125,813                               -                              -                                      -   
Alternative investments:

Private equity (including limited partnerships)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Hedge funds                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Managed futures                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Real estate investments (including REITs)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Commodities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Derivatives                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Other alternative investment types                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   

Other external investment pools                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)              17,229,623                               -                                 -                              -                       17,229,623 
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   
Other investments:

Foreign bonds                      39,023                        39,023                               -                              -                                      -   
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -   

Total other investments:                        39,023                        39,023                               -                              -                                      -   
Total investments          22,024,339            4,794,716                       -                       -               17,229,623 

2.3 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements: Not Applicable
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3.1 Capital Assets, excluding ROU assets:

Composition of capital assets, excluding ROU assets:

 Balance
June 30, 2023  Reclassifications 

 Prior Period 
Additions 

 Prior Period 
Retirements 

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated)  Additions  Retirements 

 Transfer of 
completed 

CWIP/PWIP 
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable capital assets:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Works of art and historical treasures                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Construction work in progress (CWIP)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Intangible assets:
Rights and easements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Patents, copyrights and trademarks                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Intangible assets in progress (PWIP)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Licenses and permits                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Other intangible assets:
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total Other intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable capital assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Depreciable/Amortizable capital assets:

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Leasehold improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Personal property:
Equipment                3,892,768                               -                                 -                              -                       3,892,768                    180,420               (450,993)                           -              3,622,195 

Library books and materials                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                             -                             -   

Intangible assets:
Software and websites                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                             -                             -   

Rights and easements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                             -                             -   

Patents, copyrights and trademarks                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                             -                             -   

Licenses and permits                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                             -                             -   

Other intangible assets:
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total Other intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total depreciable/amortizable capital assets                3,892,768                               -                                 -                              -                       3,892,768                  180,420             (450,993)                           -              3,622,195 

Total capital assets                3,892,768                               -                                 -                              -                       3,892,768                  180,420             (450,993)                           -              3,622,195 
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Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:  (enter as negative number, 
except for reductions enter as positive number)

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Leasehold improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Personal property:

Equipment               (2,445,935)                               -                                 -                              -                     (2,445,935)                  (284,675)                 436,570                           -            (2,294,040)

Library books and materials                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Intangible assets:

Software and websites                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Rights and easements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Patents, copyrights and trademarks                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Licenses and permits                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Other intangible assets:

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total Other intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Total intangible assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization               (2,445,935)                               -                                 -                              -                     (2,445,935)                (284,675)               436,570                           -            (2,294,040)

Total capital assets, net excluding ROU assets                1,446,833                               -                                 -                              -                       1,446,833                (104,255)                (14,423)                           -              1,328,155 
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Capital Assets, Right of Use

Composition of capital assets - Lease ROU, net:
 Balance

June 30, 2023 
 Prior Period 

Reclassifications 
 Prior Period 

Additions 
 Prior Period 
Reductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated)  Additions 

 
Remeasurement

s  Reductions 
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable lease assets:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable lease assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Depreciable/Amortizable lease assets:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Personal property:

Equipment                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                      350,551                           -                             -                 350,551 

Total depreciable/amortizable lease assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                      350,551                           -                             -                 350,551 

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:  (enter as negative number, 
except for reductions enter as positive number)

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Personal property:

Equipment                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                      (57,800)                           -                             -                  (57,800)

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                    (57,800)                           -                             -                  (57,800)

Total capital assets - lease ROU, net                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                    292,751                           -                             -                 292,751 

Composition of capital assets - SBITA ROU, net
 Balance

June 30, 2023  Reclassifications 
 Prior Period 

Additions 
 Prior Period 
Reductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated)  Additions 

 
Remeasurement

s  Reductions 
Balance

June 30, 2024

Depreciable/Amortizable SBITA assets:

Software                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total depreciable/amortizable SBITA assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Software                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total capital assets - SBITA ROU, net                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   
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Composition of capital assets - P3 ROU, net:
 Balance

June 30, 2023  Reclassifications 
 Prior Period 

Additions 
 Prior Period 
Reductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated)  Additions 

 
Remeasurement

s  Reductions 
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable P3 assets:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable P3 assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Depreciable/Amortizable P3 assets:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Personal property:

Equipment                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total depreciable/amortizable P3 assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Land and land improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Buildings and building improvements                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Improvements, other than buildings                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Infrastructure                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Personal property:                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Equipment                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total capital assets - P3 ROU, net                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

Total capital assets, net including ROU assets             1,620,906

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense:

Depreciation and amortization expense - capital assets, excluding ROU assets                      284,675 
Amortization expense - Leases ROU                        57,800 
Amortization expense - SBITA ROU                               -   
Amortization expense - P3 ROU                               -   

Depreciation and Amortization expense - Others

 Provide 
explanation for 

others: 
Total depreciation and amortization                    342,475  -Agree with below- 
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4 Long-term liabilities:

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

 Prior Period 
Adjustments/Recla

ssifications 

 Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated)  Additions  Reductions 
 Balance

June 30, 2024 
 Current 
Portion 

 Noncurrent 
Portion 

1. Accrued compensated absences                    490,918                               -                      490,918                     64,240                                    -                    555,158                 482,987                   72,171 

2. Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

3. Capital lease obligations (pre-ASC 842):

Gross balance                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   
Unamortized net premium/(discount)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Total capital lease obligations (pre ASC 842)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4. Long-term debt obligations:

4.1 Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4.2 Commercial paper                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4.3 Notes payable (SRB related)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4.4 Finance purchase of capital assets                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4.5 Others:
                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

                              -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Total others                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Sub-total long-term debt                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

4.6 Unamortized net bond premium/(discount)                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   
Total long-term debt obligations                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

5. Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities:
 Balance

June 30, 2023 

 Prior Period 
Adjustments/Recla

ssifications  Additions 
 

Remeasurements  Reductions 
 Balance

June 30, 2024 
 Current 
Portion 

 Noncurrent 
Portion 

Lease liabilities                               -                                 -                        294,600                            -                                      -                      294,600                 115,136                 179,464 

SBITA liabilities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

P3 liabilities - SCA                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

P3 liabilities - non-SCA                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   
Sub-total P3 liabilities                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Total Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities                               -                                 -                      294,600                            -                                      -                    294,600               115,136               179,464 

Total long-term liabilities                  849,758               598,123               251,635 
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5 Future minimum payments schedule - leases, SBITA, P3:

 Principal Only  Interest Only 
 Principal and 

Interest  Principal Only  Interest Only 
 Principal and 

Interest  Principal Only  Interest Only 
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:

2025                      115,136                          9,762                      124,898                            -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                   115,136                     9,762                 124,898 
2026                      119,233                          5,631                      124,864                            -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                   119,233                     5,631                 124,864 
2027                        60,231                             746                        60,977                            -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                     60,231                        746                   60,977 
2028                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2029                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2030 - 2034                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2035 - 2039                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2040 - 2044                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2045 - 2049                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
2050 - 2054                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Thereafter                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Total minimum lease payments                      294,600                        16,139                      310,739                            -                                      -                               -                             -                             -                             -                   294,600                   16,139                 310,739 

Less: amounts representing interest                 (16,139)
Present value of future minimum lease payments                  294,600
Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities                  294,600

Less: current portion               (115,136)
Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities, net of current portion $            179,464 

6 Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt obligations: Not Applicable

7 Transactions with related entities:

Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on 
contracts, grants, and other programs                      220,429 

Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel                   3,410,581 

Payments received from University for services, space, and programs                 22,790,738 

Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units                               -   
Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component 
units                               -   

Accounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number)                    (148,303)

Other amounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number)                 (1,182,863)

Accounts receivable from University (enter as positive number)                      275,938 

Other amounts receivable from University (enter as positive number)                               -   

8 Restatements: Not Applicable

Lease Liabilities  SBITA liabilities Public-Private or Public-Public Partnerships (P3) Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities
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9 Natural classifications of operating expenses:

 Salaries  Benefits - Other  Benefits - Pension  Benefits - OPEB 
 Scholarships and 

fellowships 
 Supplies and 
other services 

 Depreciation 
and amortization 

 Total operating 
expenses 

Instruction                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Research                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Public service                               -                                 65                               -                              -                                      -                        51,510                           -                     51,575 

Academic support                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Student services                   8,105,496                   2,247,278                   1,596,053                   193,617                                    -                 14,165,394                           -              26,307,838 

Institutional support                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Operation and maintenance of plant                      715,825                      278,706                          7,215                          875                                    -                   1,931,437                           -                2,934,058 

Student grants and scholarships                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                         2,541,690                             -                             -                2,541,690 

Auxiliary enterprise expenses                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                             -                             -   

Depreciation and amortization                               -                                 -                                 -                              -                                      -                               -                   342,475                 342,475 

Total operating expenses                8,821,321                2,526,049                1,603,268                 194,492                     2,541,690            16,148,341               342,475         32,177,636 

Select type of pension plan >>
 Defined Benefit 
Plan 

10 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: Not Applicable

11 Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Other nonoperating revenues                               -   
Other nonoperating (expenses)                      690,373 
Total other nonoperating revenues (expenses)                    690,373 
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SRC External Program Review
SRC Director 

JP Gale

I 



SRC External Program Review
What is an External Program Review?

An impartial evaluation of a 

program’s quality and effectiveness 

by outside experts. The reviewing 

team is commonly referred to as the 

External Review Team (ERT) in Higher 

Education.    



Why go through an External 
Program Review?

• To assess the program, validate the path we are 

on, course correct where needed and ensure we 

are staying within industry best standards.

• Typically, Rec Centers complete an External 

Program Review every 5-10 years.

• The SRC has not gone through an External 

Program Review in building history.
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Who evaluates the program?
Subject matter experts within higher 

education. 

For this review, the ERT will be made up of: 

• Bill Olmstead, Executive Director, 

Sacramento State Union WELL, Inc. 

• Mark Zakrzewski, Associate Director, ASI 

San Diego State – Aztec Recreation Center

• Mary O’Mahoney – Director, Student 

Recreation Center – CSU Bakersfield
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Who is leading the review from 
within ASI?

The Internal Review Team (IRT):

• JP Gale – SRC Director

• Noah Alvarez – Board of Directors Secretary

• Courtney Mauter – SRC Aquatics Coordinator

• DJ Netherly – Intramural and Camp Coordinator

• Alyssa Cavero – SRC Student Employee
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What will be evaluated by the ERT?
Will be using Council for the Advancement of Standards in 
Higher Education (CAS) – Collegiate Recreation Programs

1. Mission
2. Programs and Services
3. Student Learning, Development and Success
4. Assessment
5. Access, Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Justice
6. Leadership
7. Human Resources
8. Collaboration and Communication
9. Ethics, Law, and Policy
10. Financial Resources
11. Technology
12. Facilities and Infrastructure  

A ASSOCIATED 
~ STUDENTS, INC. 
CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON~ 



When and how will the ERT 
Evaluate the SRC?

• The ERT will review SRC Handbooks, policies, website, 
marketing, benchmarking and other materials beginning 
in October. 

• The ERT will come to CSUF November 13-15.

• ERT will spend three days on campus and will interview: 
• SRC Student Staff
• SRC Full Time Staff
• ASI BOD Members
• SRC Patrons
• ASI Staff from: Marketing, Accounting, IT and Human 

Resources
• Campus Staff that work with the SRC regularly



When and how will the ERT 
Evaluate the SRC?
• Following the onsite visit, the ERT will 

draft a report from November through 
February and provide the report to the 
IRT.

• Management will read the draft and 
discuss findings or areas missed during 
the review with the ERT.  

• The ERT will provide a final draft in March 
to ASI. 
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Costs of the Review
1. Compensation for ERT Members
2. Travel for ERT Members
3. Lodging for ERT Members
4. Food for ERT Members

Total Budget: $17,000

Funds to come from the 2024-25 SRC 
Operating Budget.



After the 
External Review 

ERT Team will: 
1. ERT will provide ASI with a detailed 

report of their observations and 
interviews.

2. ERT will review baselines from 
other campuses and compare to 
our SRC.

3. ERT will provide recommendations 
to address actionable change in 
the SRC.

m. ASSOCIATED 
'U STUDENTS, INC. 
CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON'" 



After the 
External Review 
SRC Team will:
1. Review ERT observations and 

recommendations. 
2. SRC Director will present the 

completed report from the ERT team 
to the Corporate Leadership Team and 
the BOD. 

3. SRC will craft a 3–5 year plan based on 
the completed Program Review and 
will present to the new BOD in 2025-
26 for approval.
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Questions on the External 
Review Process? 
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A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A STUDENT RECREATION CENTER EXTERNAL REVIEW 

Sponsors: Noah Alvarez 
 
WHEREAS, the Associated Students, Incorporated (ASI) is a 501 (c)(3) nonprofit organization 
that operates as an auxiliary organization of California State University, Fullerton; and 
 
WHEREAS, ASI is governed by ASI Board of Directors, sets policy for the organization, 
approves all funding allocations to programs and services, and advocates on behalf of student 
interests on committees and boards; and  
 
WHEREAS, ASl’s mission is to provide students and campus community members with 
important social, cultural, and recreational opportunities as well as a wide range of programs 
and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, ASI’s Student Recreation Center (SRC) opened on April 8, 2008, and annually 
serves approximately 18,000 Cal State Fullerton students, with an average of 385,000 entries; 
and 
  

WHEREAS, the Council for the Advancement of Standards in Higher Education (CAS) provide 
guidance to collegiate recreation programs along common criteria; for the purpose of uniting 
higher education associations in the use of professional standards for the development, 
assessment, and improvement of quality programs and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is an industry standard in collegiate recreation to conduct an external program 
review every 5-10 years to ensure our organization maintains high quality services, programs, 
and facility for its users; and 
 
WHEREAS, external program reviews can cost between $15,000 and $30,000 to conduct; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has inquired previously about the SRC Operations and 
Programming; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SRC has not undergone an external program review in the sixteen years since 
it has been open; therefore, let it be 
 
RESOLVED, ASI approves an external program review of the Student Recreation Center to 
take place this fall. The review shall include the facility and its programs, services, and 
practices; lead by industry professionals within the CSU Auxiliary and Campus Recreation 
professions; funded by the SRC Operations Budget; and let it be finally 
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RESOLVED, that this Resolution be distributed to the ASI Executive Director and applicable 
departments and staff and presented to the Board of Directors before the conclusion of the 
2024-2025 academic year; therefore, let it be 
 
Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Associated Students Inc., California State University, 
Fullerton on the twenty fourth day of September in the year two thousand and twenty-four.   
 
 
 
 
Gavin Ong 
Chair, Board of Directors 

 Noah Alvarez 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

 



 

 

September 24, 2024 
Board of Directors 

Executive Officers Report 
 
PRESIDENT: Joe Morales  
 
Summary: 
Hey everyone! I hope everyone has been able to survive the first month of school, and 
everyone’s grades are coming up. I want to thank you all for the great work you have all done 
so far, and encourage you all to push the limits with your advocacy work even if it extends past 
your obligations to your college, please reach out to Gavin, Suzy, and I to push these limits/ I 
also want to just give you all a heads up and make sure you are all prepared for midterms 
coming up, if you guys have any questions or need help with anything please don’t hesitate to 
reach out! 
  
Events/ Meetings Attended: 

• 9/10/24 Monthly Meeting with Provost Dabirian 
• 9/11/24 CSFPF New Governor Orientation 
• 9/12/24 Academic Senate 
• 9/17/24 Convocation Rehearsal 
• 9/17/24 Executive Team Meeting 
• 9/17/24 1:1 with Rebecca 
• 9/17/24 ASI Student Leadership Meeting 
• 9/18/24 Convocation Rehearsal 
• 9/18/24 Dave and Keya w/ Gavin and Suzette 
• 9/18/24 Convocation Technical Rehearsal 
• 9/19/24 Convocation 
• 9/19/24 Southern Region Engagement Officer Update meeting 
• 9/21/24 CSSA September Zoom Plenary 

 
 
VICE PRESIDENT: Suzette Morales 
No Report  

 
CHIEF INCLUSION & DIVERSITY OFFICER: Andrea Rameriez Rivera  
 
Summary: 
This month has been productive with key events like the SJEC training and TDRC 
UndocuWelcome, alongside important meetings such as the Provost and Executive Team 
meetings. We are focused on onboarding a new commissioner, recruiting additional members, 
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and planning initiatives like the Family-Based Petition Clinic. I encourage board members and 
community members to reach out with ideas regarding programming or initiatives they'd like to 
see from SJEC. Also, please drop off scholarship flyers in Student Centers such as TAPPs, Project 
Rebound, Student Success Centers, etc. that you pass by between or to classes.  
 
Events/Meetings Attended: 
- TDRC UndocuWelcome (Sept. 12)   
- SJEC Welcome: Analia (Sept. 17) 
- Provost Meeting (Sept. 13)   
- Executive Team Meeting (Sept. 17)   
- ASI Student Leadership Meeting (Sept. 17)   
- Convocation (Sept. 19)   
- All Commission Meeting (Sept. 20)  
- Family Based Petition Clinic Discussion (Sept. 20)  
- CAB Meeting (Sept. 25) 
 
Projects: 
- Onboarding our new commissioner   
- Planning the Family-Based Petition Clinic   
- Recruiting for an additional commissioner   
- Planning future events/initiatives such as scholarship reviews and promotions 
 
Goals for Next Week: 
- Meet with Susan and Erika regarding scholarships 
- Continue planning Family Based Petition Clinic 
- Continue efforts to recruit for SJEC commission  
 
CHIEF CAMPUS RELATIONS OFFICER:  Haneefah Syed 
 
No Report  
 
CHIEF GOVERNMENTAL OFFICER:  Megan Hannoun  
 
Summary 
 
I have spent the last two weeks working on our upcoming projects and executing our initiatives. 
I worked closely with SLL to produce a survey to collect feedback regarding the systemwide 
Time, Place, and Manner policy. The information collected was shared at CSSA with the other 
22 CSUs. Additionally, we started tabling at the farmers market and in a few hours collected 
anywhere from 50-50 registrations. I am still working on getting volunteers from the BOD. We 
have also been in the planning phase for Titans Turnout and hope to complete all details soon. 
 
Events/Meetings Attended:  

- 1:1 with Casey (9/11) 



- All Day ASI Tabling (9/12) 
- Governance Committee Meeting (9/12) 
- Farmers Market Tabling (9/17) 
- Executive Team Meeting (9/17) 
- ASI Student Leadership Meeting (9/17) 
- Lobby Corps Commissions Meeting (9/17) 
- 1:1 with Ingrid (9/18) 
- 1:1 with Rebecca (9/18) 
- Convocation (9/19) 
- Mike Madrid Event (9/19) 
- All Commissions Meeting (9/20) 
- Civic Engagement Working Group Meeting (9/20) 
- Meeting with Programming team (9/20) 
- CSSA September Plenary (9/21) 

Projects:  
- Continuing our Tabling Series 
- Collecting feedback on TPM Policy through survey to report to CSSA 
- Titans Turnout 

o Brainstorming with Lobby Corps and working through details with Austin’s team 
o Figuring out our budget for the event 
o Completing requests for media, marketing, etc.  

 
GOALS FOR NEXT WEEK:  

- Make improvements to our Tabling Series tactics to be more efficient and effective 
- Submit Titans Turnout Initiative Proposal 
- Complete requests for Titans Turnout  

 



Academic Senate
for ASI Board of Directors

Dr. Matthew Jarvis, Chair
Fall 2024
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• Provides the official voice of the university 
community on matters within its purview

• Develops, formulates, and reviews educational and 
professional policy, which becomes policy if 
approved by the President 
– Curriculum

– Academic standards

– Criteria and standards for selection, retention, and tenure 
of faculty members

– Academic and administrative policies concerning students

– Allocation of resources

Function of the Senate



University Policy Statements (UPS)

• 100: Administrative and Support Procedures 

• 200: Faculty Personnel Procedures

• 300: Student Related Policies

• 400: Curriculum

• 500: Library

• 600: Research
See Index of University Policy Statements.

UPS documents available in Senate Office or download from 
Academic Senate website (senate.fullerton.edu)



Academic Senate Office

• Staff

–Sheretha Benjamin, ext. 3684

–Cierra Chadyaddie, ext. 3683

• Location

–McCarthy Hall 133? 135?
– Seriously, good luck with room numbers. We’re 3 doors 

down from Tuffy’s Basic Needs



Members of Academic Senate

• Ex-officio members
– CSUF President
– Provost/VPAA
– Immediate Past Chair of Senate (if any)
– CSU Academic Senators (3)
– President of CFA
– Emeriti Faculty Representative
– Students ASI (2)

• Elected members
– 6 Members at Large (3-year term)
– 32 Constituency Members (2-year term) 
– Part-time Faculty (2) (1-year term)
– Staff (2) (1-year term)



General Committees

• Research

• Faculty Personnel

• Professional Leaves

• Elected directly by full-time Unit 3 faculty

• 2- or 3-year terms
(UPS 100.001)



Standing Committees
• Academic Standards

• Assessment and Educational 
Effectiveness

• Campus Facilities and Beautification

• Diversity & Inclusion

• Elections

• Extended Education

• Faculty Affairs

• Faculty Development Center Board

• Faculty Research Policy

• General Education

• Graduate Education

• Honors Programs Advisory Board

• Information Technology

• International Education

• Internships and Service Learning

• Library

• Planning, Resources, and Budget

• Student Academic Life

• University Advancement

• University Curriculum Committee

• Writing Proficiency Committee
(UPS 100.001) 

See Liaisons to Standing Committees;  

Committee members shown on A.S. website.



Upcoming Agenda Items

• Lecturer (adjunct) review policy (again)

• Changes to GE requirements to comply with 
AB 938

• Changes to committee structure of Senate



 

 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 
Board of Directors 

Board Leadership Report 
CHAIR: Gavin Ong 

Summary: 

Hi everyone, 

I hope the semester is treating everyone nicely, and you all are getting into the groove of 
everything. 

A few reminders: 

- 2:1 Board of Directors Meetings. I have sent out calendar invites to each pair based on 
your calendar availabilities. 

- Your bi-monthly reports are due every 2nd week Friday of each month. 
o These can be very quick updates: (bullet points are fine) 

▪ What your ICC covered 
▪ Dean meetings 
▪ Any concerns you or your college has. 

- Please take the time to read through my monthly reports to you all. There are reminders 
there at the end of the report with deadlines on them. 

Events/Meetings Attended: 

- Academic Senate Meeting 
- Dave & Keya with top 3 meeting 
- Strategic Plan Committee Meeting 
- CICC Meeting 
- ASI Student Leadership Meeting 
- Dave & BOD Chair meeting with SJP 
- Programs Assessment Committee Meeting 
- Finance Committee Meeting 
- Governance Committee Meeting 
- ASI Board Leadership Meeting 
- ASI Top 3 meeting with CSUF Hillel Organization 
- CCOM Dean meeting with BOD CCOM pair 
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Projects:  

- Working with BOD HDD in addressing policy wording 
- CCOM concerns and improvements – afterhours passes, advisors, etc. 
- ASI Programming & International Programs and Extensions Collaboration on 

Multicultural Festival and International Education Week. 
- ASI Student Wellness Initiative 

VICE CHAIR: Brian Rubio 

Summary: 

Hello everyone! Happy Tuesday! No major updates on my end! I wanted to wish you a good 

week, and if there is anything we can help you with, let us know!  

Events/Meetings Attended: 

Events/Meetings Attended: 

1. One-on-one with Rebecca 09/11 
2. Governance Committee 09/12 
3. ASI Top 9 Meeting 09/17 
4. Board Leadership 09/17 
5. NSM ICC Meeting 09/18 
6. IRA Meeting 09/20 

Committee: 

Committee: During Governance, we went over policy review and resolutions.  

Projects:  
 

SECRETARY: Noah Alvarez 

Summary: 

Over the course of these past two weeks, I've been pretty busy with meetings mainly regarding 

items that were presented to my programs assessment committee. I've been working closely 

with JP Gale, the director of the Student Recreation Center and Rebecca regarding the External 

Review Team coming to the SRC on November 13th, 14th, and 15th, which we just received 

approval for! Convocation was awesome! That was my very first convocation I've ever attended 

as well as the first time I've ever set foot in the Performing Arts Center. 



Events/Meetings Attended: 

All Day ASI Tabling – September 12 

ASI Student Leadership Meeting – September 17 

BOD Student Leadership Team – September 17 

SRC External Review Meeting W/ JP Gale – September 18 

1:1 W/ Rebecca Hesgard – September 19 

Convocation - September 19 

Programs Assessment Committee Meeting – September 19th 

Committee: 

On Thursday 9/19/24, programs assessment committee was presented with a proposal 

regarding an external review team coming to the SRC on November 13, 14, and 15th to which it 

was approved. 

As of right now, we are still waiting to receive more information regarding the hour changes for 

the SRC, TSU, and Children’s Center (items 8b-8.d) for the next Facilities Committee meeting. 

Projects:  
 

TREASURER: Samantha Ngo 
 
Summary: Attended several committee meetings (Finance, Governance, and Audit), Top 9 

Meeting, and Board Leadership Meeting since our last BOD meeting. Discussed long-term 

obligations, capital budgets, and policy reviews during the Finance Committee meeting. Our 

next Finance committee meeting (on Thursday), we will discuss ICC budgets. Chaired our first 

Executive Senate Meeting.  

Events/Meetings Attended: 

•  9/12 Finance Committee Meeting 
• 9/12 Governance Committee Meeting 
• 9/17 Audit Committee Meeting 
• 9/17 Top 9 Meeting 
• 9/17 Board Leadership Meeting 

Committee: 



• Chaired our first Executive Senate Meeting last Wednesday.  
• Will pilot a new reporting method where each council will receive an assigned date to 

report on their respective council. 
• Discussed some of our long-term obligations and capital budgets in the last Finance 

Committee Meeting. 
• We also discussed policy reviews. This semester, the Finance Committee will be working 

with two policies: Asset Management and Fundraising. 
• In our next Finance meeting this upcoming Thursday, we will be discussing the ICC 

budget. 

Projects: 

N/A  
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